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Dear Shareholders and Friends, BHOERE - AR :
Greetings to you all KELF |
In March 2020, Xingye Wulian was listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and TECEF=F - EEYBEBEIME

thus kicked off a new chapter in the Company's journey on the capital market. FEET - WAREME T AREATSZ
On behalf of all staff of the Group, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude BOFRE B EM=AF2E &
to our customers, investors, shareholders, partners and the community for their EREEEEBETIN—EHEBALMNIE
continuous care and support for the development of Xingye Waulian on this third HMEYBRERNERRS KREE K

anniversary of listing, R AERHN RUHEZRRERTEOH
R
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
EACE ¢

In 2022, Xingye Waulian had been forging ahead adhering to the development
strategy of “focusing on regions and leading in cities” around the central plains
urban agglomeration. At present, the gross floor area of the projects served
and the contracted gross floor area have reached 7.2 million sqm. and |1.8
million sg.m. respectively. In 2022, total revenue from property management and
property engineering services was RMB321.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB39.4 million or 14.0% as compared with RMB281.7 million
for the previous year. However, due to the downtum of the economy, our gross
profit margin has decreased from 33.3% for the previous year to 31.0% for the
Year. Net profit for the Year was approximately RMB47.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB7.3 million or 13.4% as compared with RMB54.5
million for the previous year. Profit attributable to the owners of the Group for
the Year amounted to approximately RMB47.2 million, representing a decrease of
13.4% as compared to the previous year; and basic earmings per share amounted
to RMBI |.8 cents, representing a decrease of approximately 13.5% as compared

to the previous year.

The experience of Xingye Wulian is also a microcosm of the development of the
modern property management industry. Benefiting from the expansion of the
real estate industry and the rapid development of commercial and office property
construction, Xingye Waulian has continued to enhance its services during this
golden era for commercial and office property management. As one of the urban
service providers, we are well aware of our responsibilities and have relied on our
comprehensive advantages in terms of talent, capital, management, mechanism,
philosophy and brand, to assess the situation, expand our service channels,
overcome the difficulties in property services amidst the pandemic and capture

opportunities for profit growth in a flexible manner.

Since its listing, Xingye Waulian has always stayed focused on its core strategy of
“technology empowerment”, focusing on the needs of customers, fulfilling its
social responsibilities and following steadfastly the path of innovation in Intemet of
Things.

F 3R 2022

“E-FEERTT  BEDEH l%¢
R HEE - REF[ RSB - WAL

HEREE - BAICIRSIER 2E@E
HAMNEEEBD D %LJUE%iH

KEINSEEBFELK
%%Eﬁ&%%l&%%%aﬁﬁﬁA
RERN.IBELT BREFENARK
281 7B BILEMAOARK34E ST
14.0% ° AT - ARKEEE - HMANE
PR EFENBIBTRERNFEED
31.0% - NEEFMBOR/ARKE472E
Bl BREFEMARBS4SEETTAE
DPARBTIBEEIL 134% o REFEAR
SEHBABEEFNNABARKE472E

_7—_

BT W EFERAD134% 0 RERER
BRAAREII8D B LEFERILD

13.5% °

HEEMBNEROCERRMETEER
B — BNV NEER 0 RERNFEHERR
BHAMBERRBEREROREER - 5
XYBERRMEN TSR RENHK

=R o EAMTHREE 2 — - A
AHMBLEEZE  KFEBF AT - &
& BIE B ED REREREE
g BREZ 2HARKRERE H

DB RRIE T RRGHE
MEIE R -

HEAR e

BREEYIEE ETASK - IR AL 0 R
IR NZOBE  UEFPHFE
KL% AEETHEET  BE
b E VB R BT 2 B

YR SR EAR AT

3




CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
EACE ¢

~~ Over the past year, we centered on the “Intemet of Things and Big Data Platform”
strategy, with data as the core, to promote the widespread use of the Internet
of Things in intelligent offices, factories and other service projects, involving anti-
theft alarm linkage video, quality management systems, patrol systems, etc., which
address the vehicular-to-pedestrian communication, safety, quality and efficiency
enhancement, and property-based service enhancement, allowing the integration
of intelligent hardware in offices with CRM systems and OA systems to form a

complete and closed loop of data.

Over the past year, Xingye Wulian continued to, relying on its close cooperation
with and the brand endorsement of Zensun Group, give full play to its platform
advantage as a listed company. The Company expanded its value-added business
to include building advertising, gift selection, commercial management, asset
management and other related fields, basically realising its strategic positioning
and layout of “full coverage and broad services” and forming a modem property
service system that covers the main living and working scenarios of its customers
in a multi-dimensional and multi-functional approach integrated with development
potential, which has also strengthened the Company’s confidence in its future

development prospects.

Over the past year, the Company actively built up its integrated service
capabilities, placing equal emphasis on both inside and outside of offices, acting as
a facilitator in grassroots social services and a leader in building social order with
customers; it also enriched its service scenarios constantly to reinforce customers’
perception of services and improve their satisfaction; it actively created exemplary
projects to build benchmarks in terms of hardware facilities, service efficiency
and development of cultural activity circles, so as to realise the service model of

“replication + transcendence”.

After the three-year ordeal of pandemic, we have stepped forward steadily and

are approaching the starting point of a brand-new track.

The successive delivery of contracted projects is expected to contribute stable
property management revenue for Xingye Wulian. Meanwhile, Xingye Wulian
actively extends the boundary of property market expansion, centering on
Zhengzhou and radiating the surrounding areas following the thinking of “A single
spark can start a prairie fire"; focusing on office buildings and extending to services
for public buildings and even the entire housing sector, with a view of “building

barriers against professional service entrants”.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
EACE ¢

In the future and the new era, we will follow our goal of “technology innovation
and service improvement” and strive to develop a smart internet technology
platform that serves the whole country. We will keep enhancing our technical
strength in artificial intelligence, database and other areas and keep extending our
services to projects such as smart cities and smart environmental protection, so
as to contribute to achieving significant results in “the harmonious coexistence of

people, nature and ecology” in cities.

Meanwhile, in order to improve our property management, we will put services
in our first priority, bring customers with valuable services, and adhere to our
enterprise mission which is “all for providing services that exceed customers’
expectation”, and earnestly fulfil our social responsibility to become an explorer,

builder and contributor in urban services.

We are now in a new age and a new era for the development of property
management, and we ourselves also have the foundation and conditions to
accelerate development. Amid a competitive, complicated and ever-changing
environment, we will set clear development goals, keep innovating and reward our
shareholders, investors and employees and the society with brand new idea, more

solid operation, more scientific management and better performance.
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Executive Director
Zhu Jie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
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Wang Jinhu

Liu Zhengiang
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Feng Zhidong
Zhou Sheng

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Feng Zhidong (Chairman)
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Xu Chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Zhou Sheng (Chairman)

Feng Zhidong
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Zhu Jie
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(appointed with effect from 21 July 2022)
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(resigned with effect from 21 July 2022)

AUDITOR
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Certified Public Accountant and Registered PIE Auditor

SOLICITOR
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XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

EExg
HITES
RN(EFHTBATR)

FHTES
SR
FeR
FiRoR

BYFHITES
&
5

BEREREE
BER(ZE)
A

&

N
AR ()
BER

&

REZEE

KNERE)

BB

"E

REAR

K=
(B-—F - —F+H-+—HEEEF)
(B -—F - —F+H-+—HFEE)

DNEME
Rt

P55t
(B=—ZFE - —F+H=-+—HHEET)

B D

2K & R E R

BB AT RNk B AR AT
REm

A BT

Annual Report 2022



CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEER

PRINCIPAL BANKER

China Construction Bank (Hanghai Dong Lu branch)
No. 63 Hanghai Dong Lu

Zhengzhou City

Henan Province

China

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

| 7/F Far East Finance Centre

|6 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE
PRC

Room 105, Ist Floor

No.| Gangwan Road

Guancheng Hui District, Zhengzhou City

Henan Province

China

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
24th Floor

Wyndham Place

40-44 Wyndham Street, Central

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.xingyewulian.com *

STOCK CODE
Stock Exchange: 9916

* Information on the website does not form part of this annual report
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RERME

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLFE

2022 2021
—E-C

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Key financial information FEVBER
Revenue Wzs 321,069 281,660
Gross profit EF 99,682 93,806
Net profit for the year FREAEN] 47,198 54,528
Key financial ratios FTEHKLLER
Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%) 31.0% 33.3%
Net profit margin (%) F BT (%) 14.7% 19.4%
Earmings per share BRAEN
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) - HEAREEE(ARE D) 11.8 136
SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET SEQEEME
At 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2022 202 |
—s-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTF ARBTIT
Total assets BERE 591,331 532229
Cash and cash equivalent HeMReEEY 467,723 399,132
Total liabilities BIRAE 177,834 161,721
Shareholders’ equity % B M 413,474 370,508
Current ratio (times) MENELE(fF) 3.4 34
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWN TN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Established in 1999, we are a reputable property management service provider
in Henan Province with a particular focus on offering property management and
value-added services. We provide a wide range of property management services
which include, among others, security, cleaning, greening and gardening, parking
space management, repair and maintenance for common areas and customer
services, and value-added services which include repair and maintenance for
exclusive use areas, renovation waste clearance, intermediary leasing services, etc.
We also provide our customers with property engineering services which include
the planning, design and installation of security and surveillance systems, access
control systems, carpark management systems and construction site management
systems, in order to enhance the quality of the property management systems of

our customers.

During the Year, the Group continued its business strategies to diversify its
portfolio of pipeline properties from non-residential properties to also residential
properties in provision of property management and value-added services.
Thus, our portfolio of properties under management expanded during the
Year from gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 6.6 million sqm. as at 3|
December 2021 to approximately 7.2 million sqm. as at 31 December 2022. As
at 31 December 2022, our portfolio of contracted properties covered GFA of

approximately | 1.8 million sq.m. in aggregate.

During the Year, the Group continued to expand the scale of property
engineering services performed for the customers as compared with 2021.
During the Year, we have entered into 34 new property engineering contracts
with an aggregated contract amount of approximately RMB40.2 million. As at
31 December 2022, the total contract sum for contracted engineering services
with remaining performance obligations amounted to contract sum for RMB48.7

million, which will contribute to the Group's revenue in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Revenue

Our Group's revenue was primarily generated from (i) property management and

value-added services and (i) property engineering services.

For the Year, our Group's total revenue was approximately RMB321I.1 million,

representing an increase of approximately RMB39.4 million or 14.0% as compared

to approximately RMB281.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Such increase was primarily attributable to the increase in segment revenue from

property management services.

The following table sets out the breakdown of our revenue by type of services

during the years:

B 75 [0l B8

Y 2=
REBNKEFEEZRE(VMEERERILE
ARFS DA K (i ¥ 2 T2 ARFE ©

REBFARGRBHAAREDRILIB
BT BEE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—
HIEFEHAREI 7EETEMOA
R¥4EGETH140% > EFEEIEETE
EHRYEEE RS D IPURSIL N

TREINFERRBER B 500 M s
BRAR

2022 2021
—s-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Property management and MEEER
value-added services RERT
— Property management services —MEEEIRTE 254,598 79.3 223,335 79.3
— Value-added services — 1B (E R 2,177 0.7 5,039 1.8
256,775 80.0 228374 81.1
Property engineering services Y TZRE 50,819 15.8 45722 162
Others Hit 13,475 4.2 7,564 2.7
Total w@Et 321,069 100.0 281,660 100.0

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DM

The following table sets out the breakdown of our revenue between a person(s)
or company(ies) who/which is or are independent of and not connected with our
Company and our connected persons and related parties (‘Independent Third

Parties”) during the years:

TREINNFERN - HAKEBZL
NEIRBFINEEA T KBRS B2
VEEENDALTIAR(BYIE=5])
U et AR AR

2022
—E_—
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR¥ETTT
Independent Third Parties BN E=F 232,775 725 191,359 679
Related parties A 88,294 27.5 90,301 32.1
Total “Et 321,069 100.0 281,660 100.0
Property management and value-added services Yy 2 = )G 12 AR K

Our Group’s revenue generated from property management and value-added
services increased by approximately RMB28.4 million or 12.4% from approximately
RMB228.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB256.8 million for the Year. This increase was primarily resulted from the
mixed effects of: (i) the expansion of properties under management through
continuous expansion of diversified property portfolio of both non-residential and
residential properties which brought in revenue of approximately RMB47.3 million,
and (i) the impact from the property market downturn, in which provision of
property management services to sales offices and show flats for property projects
have been affected and no new projects was obtained during the Year which led

to a decrease in revenue of RMBI3.0 million.

Property engineering services

During the Year, the Group continued to expand the scale of property
engineering services performed for the customers, and revenue from property
engineering services has increased from approximately RMB45.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB50.8 million for the Year,

representing an increase in revenue of approximately RMB5. 1 million or | 1.2%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DM

= Cost of Sales

Our Group’s cost of sales consisted of subcontracting costs, staff costs and
materials and consumables. We recorded an increase in cost of sales of
approximately RMB33.5 million or 17.9% from approximately RMB187.9 million
for the year ended 3| December 2021 to approximately RMB221.4 million for
the Year. Such increase was generally in line with our growth in revenue during

the Year associated with the expansion in our properties under management.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately RMB5.9 million or 6.3% from
approximately RMB93.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB99.7 million for the Year. Our gross profit margin was
approximately 31.0% for the Year as compared to that of approximately 33.3%
for the year ended 3| December 2021. The decrease in the Group’s gross profit
margin was mainly resulted from the downturn of the overall real estate economy,
in which the contract price undertaken during the year are relatively lower than

the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other Income, Other Gains and Losses, Net

Other income, other gains and losses, net mainly comprised government grants
and interest income. Our other income, other gains and losses, net decreased by
approximately RMBI13.7 million or 82.5% from approximately RMB16.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB2.9 million for the
Year. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in government grants
received and the recognition of a net loss in foreign exchange difference during
the Year.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses primarily comprised marketing expenses
and staff costs for our marketing personnel. Our selling and marketing expenses
remained relatively stable between the years at approximately RMBI.3 million
for the Year and approximately RMBI.5 million for the year ended 31 December

2021, respectively.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DM

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly comprised staff costs of our administrative
staff at our headquarters, office expenses and professional fees. Our administrative
expenses remained fairly stable, amounted to approximately RMB35.5 million
during the Year as compared to that of approximately RMB35.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Finance Costs
Our finance costs represented the imputed interest generated from rights of use

assets in connection with the lease contract payments for our lease properties.

Income Tax Expenses

Our income tax expenses slightly decreased by approximately RMB0.4 million
or 2.2% from approximately RMBI18.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMBI7.8 million for the Year which was in line with the
decrease in profit before tax brought from the decrease in other income and

gains during the Year.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit attributable to the owners of the parent
decreased by approximately RMB7.3 million or 13.4% from approximately
RMB54.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB47.2 million for the Year.

Dividend for the Year

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DM

Property, Plant and Equipment

The net carrying value of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB3.6 million as at 31 December 2022, representing an increase
by approximately RMBI.9 million or || 1.8% as compared to approximately
RMBI.7 million as at 31 December 2021, was mainly due to the newly purchased
charging pile equipments.

Trade Receivables

Our total trade receivables was approximately RMB83.5 million and trade
receivable net of loss allowance was approximately RMB82.2 million as at 31
December 2022, as compared to that of approximately RMB40.6 million and
RMB40.0 million, respectively, as at 31 December 2021. The increase in both the
total trade receivables and trade receivable net of loss allowance was mainly due
to the growth in properties under management and the slower settlement from
counterparties as compared with the year ended 31 December 2021 as a result
of the economy downtumn.

Our trade receivables from related parties of approximately RMB6 1.1 million as at
31 December 2022, representing an increase of approximately RMB29.7 million
or 94.6% as compared to approximately RMB3 1.4 million as at 3|1 December
2021, were associated with outstanding property management fees generated
from unsold properties under management and property engineering services
rendered to the related parties.

Our trade receivables from Independent Third Parties amounted to approximately
RMB22.4 million as at 31 December 2022, representing an increase of
approximately RMB13.2 million or 143.5% as compared to approximately RMB9.2
million as at 31 December 2021.

Trade Payables

Our trade payables primarily consisted of payables to our suppliers for their
products and our subcontractors for their provision of labour or services for
property management and value-added services and property engineering
services. Our trade payables amounted to approximately RMB4 1.8 million as at 31
December 2022, representing an increase of approximately RMB19.3 million or
85.8% as compared to approximately RMB22.5 million as at 31 December 2021.
The increase in trade payables was consistent with the increase in cost of sales
during the Year.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DM

Other Payables and Accruals

Our other payables and accruals mainly comprised other payables, payroll
payables, deposits, tax payables other than income tax and amounts due to
related parties. Our other payables and accruals amounted to approximately
RMB60.6 million as at 31 December 2022, which remained relatively stable as
compared to approximately RMB55.2 million as at 31 December 2021.

Contract Liabilities

Our contract liabilities represented advanced receipts for property management
and value-added services. Our contract liabilities decreased from approximately
RMB74.0 million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB66.9 million as
at 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of approximately RMB7.1 million
or 9.6%. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in advances received from

customers of property management services during the Year.

Indebtedness

As at 3| December 2022, we had no outstanding borrowings and unutilised
banking facilities (2021: Nil). The Group's lease liabilities decreased from
approximately RMB5. | million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB3.4
million as at 3|1 December 2022.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Our Group maintained a healthy financial position. As at 31 December 2022,
the current assets amounted to approximately RMB583.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMB57.9 million or |1.0% as compared to
approximately RMB526.0 million as at 31 December 2021. As at 31 December
2022, cash and cash equivalents of our Group amounted to approximately
RMB467.7 million, representing an increase of approximately RMB68.6 million
or 17.2% as compared to approximately RMB399.| million as at 31 December
2021. As at 31 December 2022, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group were

mainly denominated in RMB and Hong Kong dollars.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DM

= Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total debt (of which debt represents

interest-bearing borrowings) divided by the total equity as at the end of the
reporting period. As at 31 December 2022, our Group has no interest-bearing

borrowings and hence the gearing ratio was nil.

The capital structure of our Group is primarily equity which comprises issued

share capital and reserves.

Current Ratio

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total
current liabilities at the end of the reporting period. The current ratio of our
Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 remained stable at approximately 3.4

times.

Charge of Group’s Assets and Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2022, none of the assets of our Group was pledged and

there were not any charges on the Group's assets.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 3| December 2022, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material capital

commitments.

Foreign Exchange Risks

Our Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions settled
in RMB. Therefore, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency
exchange risk except certain bank balances denominated in Hong Kong dollars
that were held by the Company. Currently, the Group did not entered into
contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk, but the management will
continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure, and take prudent measures

to reduce the foreign exchange risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DM

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON OUR

BUSINESS
Since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has prepared itself to

adapt to the ever-changing challenges and environment. Epidemic precautionary
and control measures were carried out from time to time in all our working
locations to ensure that we continued to provide uninterrupted quality services to
our customers. During the outbreak, our Group has maintained sufficient working

capital to cope with the impact of the pandemic and industry downtum.

In spite of the cancellation of the zero-COVID policy released by the PRC
government in early January 2023, the macro-economic environment requires
time to recover and the PRC property industry will continue to face great
challenges in the foreseeable future. Therefore, besides the Group’s strategy in
expanding our pipeline property portfolio to provide property management and
value-added services also to residential properties in order to diversify our income
streams and leverage the risk and rewards from non-residential properties under
the uncertain economic environment, the Group plans to devote more resources
to the enhancement of our property management and property engineering

services.

The Group was not aware of risks or uncertainties that would cause material
adverse effects on the Group's operations, financial performance and financial
position as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak during the Year and up to the date
of this report.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 December 2022, our Group had 570 employees. We generally

determine employees’ compensation based on their qualification, position,
seniority and performance. Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
we participate in various employee social security plans that are organised by
applicable local municipal and provincial governments, including pension, medical,
matemity, work-related injury and unemployment benefit plans. Total staff-related
cost, including Directors’ emoluments, was approximately RMB50.2 million during
the Year (2021: RMB43.3 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DM

ERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Year, our Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant investments
accounting for more than 5% of the Group’s total assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31
December 2022. In the event that the Group is engaged in any plan for material
investments or capital assets, the Company will make announcement(s) and
comply with relevant rules under the Listing Rules as and when appropriate.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Group actively extends the boundary of its property market expansion,
following the thinking of “A single spark can start a prairie fire”; focusing on office
buildings and extending to services for public buildings and even the entire housing
sector, with a view of “building barriers against professional service entrants”.

In the future and the new era, the Group will follow our goal of “technology
innovation and service improvement” and strive to develop a smart internet
technology platform that serves the whole country. We will keep enhancing
our technical strength in artificial intelligence, database and other areas and keep
extending our services to projects such as smart cities and smart environmental
protection, so as to contribute to achieving significant results in “the harmonious
coexistence of people, nature and ecology” in cities. Meanwhile, in order to
improve our property management service, we will put services in our first
priority, bring customers with valuable services, and adhere to our enterprise
mission which is “to provide services to its fullest extent that exceed customers’
expectation”, and earnestly fulfil our social responsibility to become an explorer,
builder and contributor in urban services.

The property management industry is now in a new age and a new era, and the
Group itself also has the foundation and conditions to accelerate development.
Amid a competitive, complicated and ever-changing environment, we will set our
clear development goals, stay innovative and reward our shareholders, investors,
employees, the society, departments at all levels as well as care and support from
all aspects with brand new idea, more substantial operations, more scientific
management and better performance.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEENRGNEEE

ZHU JIE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhu Jie (5R7R) (“Mr. Zhu'), aged 46, was appointed as our Director on
2 August 2019 and was re-designated as our executive Director, chairman
of our Board and our chief executive officer on |7 September 2019. Mr. Zhu
is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”). Mr. Zhu joined our Group in April 2015 and is primarily responsible
for the overall management and strategic planning of our Group's business
operations. Mr. Zhu is currently the chairman of the board of directors and
general manager of Henan Xingye Internet of Things Management Technology
Co, Ltd* (RIF BB HEB IR AR AR (Xingye IOT Management”)
and the executive director and general manager of Henan Xingye Internet of
Things Information Consulting Co., Ltd.* (8] g EL3E ¥t (E Erh B R A 7))
("Xingye Consulting”), each a subsidiary of our Company.

Mr. Zhu has over 2| years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Mr. Zhu served as a deputy general manager of Xingye
|IOT Management from April 2015 to May 2017 and was subsequently appointed
as the chairman of the board of directors and general manager of Xingye IOT
Management in May 2017. He has been the executive director and general
manager of Xingye Consulting since its establishment in April 2018. Prior to joining
our Group, from August 1997 to March 2001, Mr. Zhu served as a supervisor in
Henan Zhengzhou Jianguo Restaurant Co., Ltd.* (i mg S0 22 Rk JE AR A
AJ), which is principally engaged in catering, entertainment and hotel consulting.
From March 2001 to August 2004, Mr. Zhu served as a manager of Henan Xin
Changcheng Shiye Restaurant Co., Ltd* (AT RN E AR A R RHER
J&), which is principally engaged in the provision of catering services and property
management. From August 2004 to August 2013, Mr. Zhu served as a deputy
general manager of Henan Taiping Shijia Property Management Co., Ltd.* (JA]Fg
KFEHERMERBSER A, which is principally engaged in the provision of
property management services. From September 2013 to March 2015, Mr. Zhu
served as a deputy general manager in Xuchang Huiyu Real Estate Co,, Ltd.* (FF
2 ERHEFBR A 7)), which is principally engaged in real estate development

and sales.

Mr. Zhu has become a Delegate of the |7th National People's Congress (NPC)
of Guancheng District, Zhengzhou City, Henan Province in June 2022.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in refrigeration and air conditioning from Henan
Textile Industry College (JF] B #1 kT2 224%) in the PRC in June 1997.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEEREREERE

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhang Huiqi (SREE) (“Ms. Zhang"), aged 33, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on |7
September 2019. Ms. Zhang joined our Group as a supervisor from September
2013 to May 2017 and re-joined our Group in |2 August 2019 and is primarily

responsible for our Group's business development and investor relations.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration (economic
information management) from Beijing Forestry University (1 AR EE K E2) in the
PRC in July 2011, a master of science degree in management from University of
Leicester in the United Kingdom in January 2014 and a master of science degree
in project and enterprise management from University College London in the
United Kingdom in November 2015.

In addition, Ms. Zhang is currently a director of Global Medical REIT Inc., a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Stock Code: GMRE) which is

principally engaged in the real estate investment business in the United States.

Ms. Zhang is the sole director of Foison Amber Development Limited (“Foison
Amber Development”) and Fast Achieve Global Limited (“Fast Achieve”), which
are immediate shareholder and intermediate holding company of our Group,
respectively and interested in 56.59% of the issued share capital of our Company
by virtue of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO™). Ms. Zhang is also the protector and a discretionary beneficiary of the
family trust (“Blossom Trust") established on 16 August 2019 by Ms. Huang
Yanping as settlor, which ultimately owns 56.59% of our Group. Ms. Zhang is
entitled to control the exercise of approximately 56.59% of the total issued share

capital of our Company by virtue of the SFO.
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WANG JINHU

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Jinhu (E£FZ) (‘Mr. Wang"), aged 53, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
|7 September 2019. Mr. Wang joined our Group in May 2017 and is primarily
responsible for providing strategic advice to our Board. Mr. Wang is currently a
vice president of Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd* (AIFEI [ERm B2 AR A 7).

Mr. Wang has over 29 vears of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Mr. Wang has been serving as a director of Xingye IOT
Management since May 2017. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang served
as the construction supervisor from September 1993 to June 1995, then the
statistical officer from July 1995 to February 1997 of Zhengzhou Huayu Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd* (BB ZE= 44 5=t & 7 25/ [R A A), which is principally
engaged in real estate development and operation. From March 1997 to
December 1997, from January 1998 to March 1999, from April 1999 to October
2000, Mr. Wang served as a sales personnel, a manager of the strategic planning
department and a manager of the real estate management service department,
respectively, in Henan Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (Ji] 7 &2 %
FEHEMEEFR A F]), which is principally engaged in real estate development.
From November 2000 to January 2003, Mr. Wang served as the head of the
landscape and decoration department; from January 2003 to January 2005, he
served as a general manager of the project department; from January 2005 to
June 2006, he served as an assistant to the chief executive officer; from June 2006
to October 2008, he served as a marketing director and as an assistant to the
executive officer; from October 2008 to April 2009, he served as an assistant to
the executive officer, the head of the landscape support center and technology
centre and in April 2009, he was promoted to the position of vice president
in Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd.* (A IEfE & %A R /AF]), which is

principally engaged in real estate development.
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1993 with a major in geography and completed a senior management business
administration course at Tsinghua University (B2 AE28) in the PRC in October

2010. Mr. Wang also obtained the certificate of senior construction engineer in
March 2008 granted by Tianjin Personnel Bureau* (KET AE/E).

LIU ZHENQIANG

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Zhengiang (ZI#&x38) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 63, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
|7 September 2019. Mr. Liu joined our Group in May 2017 and is primarily
responsible for providing strategic advice to our Board. Mr. Liu is currently a vice
president of Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd* (A FG IE R B 2 AR A7)

Mr. Liu has over |18 years of experience in the property management and real
estate industry. Mr. Liu has been serving as a director of Xingye IOT Management
since May 2017. Prior to joining our Group, Mr Liu served as a deputy general
manager and a supervisor of the property management centre from October
2004 to October 2005, a deputy supervisor of the land development committee
from January 2007 to August 2008, a deputy director of the land development
centre from September 2008 to April 2009, a director of the land development
centre from April 2009 to October 2011, and was further promoted to the
position of vice president in October 2011 of Henan Zensun Real Estates Co,,
Ltd.* ORI IEPE B ¥ AR A F]), which is principally engaged in real estate
development. Mr. Liu also served as an assistant to the general manager and head
of real estate management service and customer service department of Henan
Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (r] B ¥ E it ZE M2 A R A R))
from October 2005 to January 2007.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor's degree in physics, majoring in radio physics, in June
1983 from the University of Zhengzhou (BB X&) in the PRC and graduated
from the University of Zhengzhou (EJMKZ) in the PRC in November 2006
with a major in business administration. Mr. Liu also obtained the certificate of
senior engineer of construction and installation in the PRC granted by Tianjin
Personnel Bureau* (K)£T A% /&) in March 2008,

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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XU CHUN

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Chun (&%) (“Mr. Xu"), aged 46, was appointed as our Director on
9 September 2019 and was re-designated as our independent non-executive
Director on |7 September 2019. Mr. Xu is a member of the Nomination
Committee, the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of the Company. He is mainly

responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Xu has more than |8 years of experience in the real estate industry. From
August 1999 to August 2004, Mr. Xu worked as a deputy chief of technical quality
division of Jiangsu Huajian Construction Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen branch)* (T #k&
EFEZRHB AR D FEIIS A F]), which is principally engaged in building
construction. From September 2004 to December 2004, he worked as a civil
engineer of Shenzhen Hongwei Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (O&IIIGEL
B HiEREEFR A F]), which is principally engaged in real estate development.
From December 2004 to April 2013, he worked in the Longban area in Shenzhen
Wanke Development Co., Ltd.* (RIITTEEEERBRAR]) (formerly known
as Shenzhen Wanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (FRIITERIEHEARR A R)),
which is principally engaged in real estate development with his last position as a
general manager. From April 2013 to April 2020, he worked as a vice president
in Zhuoyue Real Estate Holdings Co., Ltd.* (EE £ B BR A 7)), which
is principally engaged in real estate development. From May 2020 to May 2021,
Mr. Xu was appointed as the vice president of Sinic Holdings (Group) Company
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2103), and also served as the chairman of the board of Shenzhen, Dongguan and
Huizhou regions, and with his last position as vice president and the chairman
of the board of Bay Area Regions (including Shenzhen, Dongguan, Huizhou,
Zhongshan and Zhuhai regions). From June 2021, he was appointed as the
chairman of Huachuang Chengkai Holding (Shenzhen) Group Co. Ltd.* (ZE&II¥
FTERE ORI E£EE B PR A F]) and Shenzhen Huaan Investment Development
Co. td* (RINTELREZRABRAR).
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~4Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor's degree in construction engineering from China

University of Mining and Technology (FF BI#EZ KE2) in the PRC in July 1999, a
master of construction and civil engineering degree in Southeast University (327
AKE) in the PRC in April 2005. Mr. Xu has also obtained an executive master of
business administration degree from Tsinghua University (/&2 A22) in the PRC
in January 2019.

FENG ZHIDONG

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Feng Zhidong (5 EE) (“Mr. Feng”), aged 49, was appointed as our
Director on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our independent non-
executive Director on |7 September 2019. Mr. Feng is the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is mainly

responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Feng has more than 22 years of experience in financial management, capital
operations and managing investor relations. In particular, Mr. Feng was a deputy
general manager of the capital department of Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings)
Limited from December 2009 to July 2016. Mr. Feng was also a general manager
of the investor relations department of a group company of Yuexiu Property
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 123) from April 2012 to April 2016. Mr. Feng was an independent
non-executive director of OKG Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known as
LEAP Holdings Group Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1499) from August 2015 to November 2017.

In addition, Mr. Feng has served as (i) the chairman of the board and a director of
Guangzhou Yueting Network Technology Co., Ltd* (MR ERERI AR
73 7A]), which is principally engaged in internet parking services, since June 2016;
and (ii) the chairman of the board and a director of Guangzhou Yueting Capital
Management Co., Ltd* (BEMIZEEREIEEGR A F]), which is principally
engaged in parking management and corporate management services, since
August 2018.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

BREER—NNANFELAETERESS
B\EEASRETREELTEM - X
ZTAFENAGETEESREAZER
MEARTRRBELEM - HREETR-F
—NE-RAETBREGBFEAESAT
BEIEEL R

BER

BUFHTES
BERLEE(NBERE]D 4955 RZT
—hWENA+_BEZRTAESE IR
—E-NFAATEBEATAEBIIER
TEL - BLERAERZEGZERER
YWEEEerKE - REIBEBEEEE
= RAHEREEBTER -

BAEEMEER EREBIERIREE
BEEETAKABANTLR - &M
T BEERZZEENFFT_AEZ=ZE
—NFLtAEHFEE(EE)BRAF
EAEEAKENRNELE - BEETN
T —FNAEE—ARFNAE—
MEBERQRMFEERMD AR A (5
RATERLETAGR - RGOS - 123)#
EREEMRIBEE - BEER-ZF
—hAFNREZZE—tFt+—AEEFR
ERIERABRAR (A AAEEREE
BRAA - BRFAERLETAR - B’H
RIR 149N EEBIIENITES -

S BN B T —NEN ARES
BN E @B EER AR ESESREE
FRARFENEEZEERE &
HBZZE—N\F/\AREEMNIEFEER
EERBERATETIEERFEE 22
AFEENREEEREERDEETERY -

Annual Report 2022



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEEREREERE

Mr. Feng, the independent non-executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as the independent non-executive director of KH. Group Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1557) in May 2022.

Mr. Feng, the independent non-executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as the independent non-executive director of Xinda Investment
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1281) in
October 2022.

Mr. Feng obtained a bachelor’s degree in international accounting from the
Renmin University of China (B AR KE) in the PRC in July 1995 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from South China University
of Technology ZERIIE T KE) in the PRC in February 2004. Mr. Feng has also
completed the mergers and acquisitions executive program from the Business
School of Sun Yat-sen University (8 1LIK22) in the PRC in March 2015 and
the Global Entrepreneur Leadership Program from the PBC School of Finance
at Tsinghua University (52 A2 HE AL RELT) in the PRC in July 2019. In
addition, Mr. Feng obtained the certificate of specialty and technology (intermediate
level) in accounting in the PRC granted by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in
May 1999.
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] S

I
OU SHENG

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Zhou Sheng (JAIES) (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 50, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our independent non-executive
Director on |7 September 2019. Mr. Zhou is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent

advice to our Board.

Mr. Zhou has more than 23 years of experience in the legal field in the PRC. From
July 1999 to February 2002 and from March 2002 to November 2006, Mr. Zhou
worked as an associate in Beijing Weiheng Law Firm (At T & 2RI = T5FT)
and Beijing Saide Tiangin Law Firm* (3t RTE{ERENEENETEFT), respectively,
both located in Beijing, China. Mr. Zhou started as an associate at Beijing City
Zhong Zhou Law Firm* (A6 T HNEEN = H5FR), a law firm located in Beijing

China, in November 2006 and is currently a senior partner of the law firm.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in materials engineering from Jiangxi
University of Science and Technology (I 7A¥E T K£%) (formerly known as
Nanfang Yejin College (F8 A /A€ 20t)) in the PRC in June 1995, He also
obtained a bachelor's degree in law from China University of Political Science and
Law (FFEEBUEKRER) in the PRC in July 1999. He further obtained a master's
degree in business administration from Peking University (1t A E2) in the PRC
in July 201 3.
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Senior Management
Mr. Zhang Yong (BGRE) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 40, joined our Group in March
2015 and is primarily responsible for our Group’s financing activities and capital

operation.

Mr. Zhang has over |0 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Mr. Zhang served as an executive director and general
manager of Xingye IOT Management from March 2015 to April 2017. He has
been a deputy general manager of Xingye IOT Management since May 2017. He
was a secretary of the board of directors of Xingye IOT Management from May
2017 to September 2019. Since September 2019, he was appointed as the deputy
general manager of our Group. In August 2021, Mr. Zhang was appointed as the
executive director for Zanyu Technology Group Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 2637.52),
a company listed in Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Prior to joining our Group, from
August 2006 to April 201 I, Mr. Zhang served as an engineer of Zhejiang Electric
NCIE VS 2i\V8
& B, which is principally engaged in hydroelectric power. From May 201 | to

Power Company Jinshuitan Hydropower Plant* (4T T4 % 1

2%E
March 2013 and from April 2013 to March 2015, Mr. Zhang served as a specialist
of capital operations and a manager of capital securities department, respectively,
in Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd.* (A IEfE & ¥ AR AF]), which is
principally engaged in real estate development and operation. Mr. Zhang served as
a supervisor in Henan Zhengshang Donghua Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (JA] & 1E & 5
FEEZ B[R /A F]) from January 2016 to December 2020 and Henan Zhengshang
Shangbin Real Estate Co,, Ltd* ()] g 1F 34 1a/8 B 2 B BR 2 7)) from July 2016 to
November 2018, respectively, both of which are principally engaged in real estate
development. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree in agricultural hydraulics
engineering from North China University of Water Resources and Electric Power
(FEHEKFIKEEZPR) in the PRC in July 2004 and further obtained a master's
degree in engineering from Wuhan University (E,)£XE2) in the PRC in June
2006.
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' Ms. Guo Hong (ZBAL) (“Ms. Guo”), aged 50, joined our Group in January 2016

and is primarily responsible for our Group’s daily operations.

Ms. Guo has over |4 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Ms. Guo served as a manager in the general administrative
department of Xingye IOT Management from January 2016 to July 2017 and
served as a supervisor from May 2017 to September 2019. She was also
promoted to the position of supervisor in November 2017 in Henan Wuxiang
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.* (AIF¥IRERERHT AR A F]). She has been
a deputy general manager of Xingye IOT Management since August 2017. Prior
to joining our Group, Ms. Guo served as a sales consultant and sales manager in
Henan Minghui Real Estates Co., Ltd* (AF & BHIEE EBR A F]), which is
principally engaged in real estate development and operation, from May 1997 to
September 1998 and from September 1998 to September 2000, respectively.
From July 2001 to September 2004 and from September 2004 to September
2011, Ms. Guo served as an assistant to the general manager and deputy general
manager, respectively, in Henan Runhua Shangwu Service Co., Ltd* (] %
P RRTE B BR A 7)), which is principally engaged in housing rental and business
information consulting services. From May 201 | to December 2015, Ms. Guo
served as a manager in the general department of Henan Jianzheng Real Estate
Co,, Ltd* (A FEZ1IEE HEBR A 7)), which is principally engaged in real estate

development and operation.

Ms. Guo obtained a bachelor's degree in labour economics management from
Henan University of Economics and Law (] B B &8 BUE K Z2) (formerly known as
Henan College of Economics (] # B 48 225)) in the PRC in December 1999.
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Mr. Luo Shudan (ZBZ£ 1) (“Mr. Luo”), aged 47, joined our Group in October
2016 and is primarily responsible for the overall management of our property
management services and property engineering services. Mr. Luo has over |3
years of experience in the property management and property engineering
services industry. Mr. Luo has been serving as an engineering manager and an
assistant to the general manager of Xingye IOT Management since October 201 6.
Prior to joining our Group, from October 1997 to May 2008, Mr. Luo served
different positions (including supervisor of the department of general electrician)
in Zhengzhou Jinlong Cement Co,, Ltd.* (851 & 8E7KJEAR D B R A &), which is
principally engaged in cement production and sales. From May 2008 to July 2010
and from July 2010 to December 2012, Mr. Luo served as a hydropower engineer
and manager of the engineering maintenance department, respectively, of Henan
Shanshui Property Management Co., Ltd* (AT LLIZK B2 B IR G BR 2 A)), which
is principally engaged in property management. From December 2012 to August
2013 and from August 2013 to January 2016, Mr. Luo served as an engineering
manager and project manager for Project Olive City Urban Plaza, respectively, of
Henan Yaxin Property Service Co.,, Ltd* (Al 8 Zn ¥ % BRI B BR A &), which is

principally engaged in property management.

Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor in law degree from The Communist Party of China
DR A ZER) in the PRC in December
2002. In addition, Mr. Luo obtained the certificate of speciality in engineering in

Henan Provincial Party School* (A #%

the PRC granted by the Shaanxi Provincial Department of Human Resources and

Social Security* (BRP5E A S EIRFIHE EIRFEEE) in August 2010.
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~Mr. Xiang Zheng (}1E) (“Mr. Xiang”), aged 37, joined our Group in June

2015 and is primarily responsible for the overall management of projects.

Mr. Xiang served as a project manager of Xingye |OT Management from June
2015 to July 2018. He was promoted to the position of assistant to the general
manager in July 2018. Prior to joining our Group, he was the administrative
personnel and business service manager of Henan Runhua Business Service Co,
Ltd.* (f] = B 2E i A5 AR 7S B BR 2 |)), which is principally engaged in housing
rental and business information consulting services from April 2010 to September
2012 and from September 2012 to November 2013, respectively.

Mr. Xiang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economic management from Beijing
Economic and Technological Research Institute (16 &S EFMTHHE EBT) in the
PRC in July 2010.

Ms. Shi Suran (BFSZ#R) (“Ms. Shi”), aged 36, joined our Group as our chief
financial officer on 19 September 2020 and is primarily responsible for supervising

our Group's financial reporting, corporate finance activities, and investor relations.

Ms. Shi has over |3 years of experience in accounting, auditing and corporate
finance. Before joining the Group, Ms. Shi served as the project manager in
Zhongrui Yuehua Certified Public Accountants LLP (Special General Partnership)
(a member of RSM International) from October 2009 to August 201 I. She last
served as the senior auditor in the Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Beijing branch during her tenure from August 201 | to October
2015, and as the senior auditing manager in Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000046) from
October 2015 to April 2016. Ms. Shi joined Henan Zensun Real Estate Co,,
Ltd* (A IER B ¥ A PR/ F]) and worked as a deputy manager of the capital
securities department from April 2016 to May 2019 and thereafter worked as
finance manager in Henan Zensun Enterprise Development Group Co., Ltd.* (JA]
MIERC¥EREREEABRSTAA]) from May 2019 to September 2020.
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Ms. Shi holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Henan University of Science
and Technology obtained in 2009. Ms. Shi is a member of the Beijing Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Chang, Eric Jackson (3R 1tHE) (“Mr. Chang”) is our Company's company
secretary appointed on 21 July 2022 and responsible for the Group’s corporate
secretarial functions. Mr. Chang has over 20 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, financial management and corporate governance matters. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Chang has over 10 years of working experience
in Hong Kong listed companies, and has worked as a senior manager in
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr. Chang is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

* English translation of company names in Chinese or another language which are marked

with “*” are for identification purpose only.
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=~ Our Directors present their annual report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of our Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Our Company acts as an investment holding company and together with its
subsidiaries engages in property management and value-added services and
property engineering services. The activities and particulars of our Company's

principal subsidiaries are set out in note | to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of our Group’s revenue and results by principal operating segments for

the Year is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of our Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 90.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Our Group was established in 1999, with a particular focus on offering property

management and value-added services for non-residential properties.

A detailed business review of our Group for the Year and a discussion of our
Group's future business development and the key risks and uncertainties of our
Group are set out in “Chairman’s Message” on pages 2 to 5, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 18 and the section headed “Key Risks and

Uncertainties”.

An analysis of our Group’s performance for the Year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Chairman’s Message” on pages 2 to
5, “Financial Highlights” on page 8 and “Financial Summary” on page 192 of this

annual report.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties
The below outlined certain key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group

that may affect our Group's business, financial position and results of operations.

Our Group'’s business performance is primarily susceptible to our portfolio of
properties under management for property management services and contracted
engineering services for property engineering services. Our Group's business
growth on our pipeline properties will likely be affected by the general economic
condition affecting the real estate market, delivery and development schedule of
our contracted properties by property developers and any change in laws and

regulation for our operation in the PRC.

Our Group'’s current level of profitability also depends on the Group’s ability to
control operating costs (especially in relation to our labour and subcontracting
costs) and the Group’s profit margins and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected by the fluctuations in labour or other operating costs
in response to the regulatory laws on minimum wages and demand on labour
supply, etc). The Group may not be able to procure new property management
service contracts as planned or at desirable pace or price; termination or non-
renewal of the Group'’s property management agreements for a significant number
of properties could have a material adverse effect on business, financial position

and results of operations.

Our Group's financial risks, management objectives (including capital management)

and policies are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

In response to these possible risks and uncertainties, the Group continues to
implement a series of intermal controls and strategies to cope with the possible
risks and changes. The Group also develops and reviews strategies, policies
and guidelines on risk control which enable the Group to monitor closely and
formulate business strategies to respond to risks promptly and effectively. The
Group also actively proposes measures to minimise any potential business impact

on the Group from these possible risks and uncertainties.
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' Environmental Policies and Performance

Our Group has established occupational safety and sanitation systems,
implemented the national occupational safety and sanitation rules and standards,
and provided employees with workplace safety training on a regular basis. We
promote the importance of environment protection and implement environmental
friendly policies in the operation, including green office measures with accredited
international environmental management certification. We are committed to act
in an environmentally responsible manner and review our environmental policies

and activities from time to time to enhance environmental sustainability.

Our Company will issue separately an Environmental, Social and Governance
Report under Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as specified

in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

Relationship with Stakeholders
Our Group recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers are our key
stakeholders and are dedicated to maintaining a good relationship with them to

build a solid foundation for the sustainable development of our Group.

Our Group offers comprehensive compensation to our employees, including
salary, bonuses and cash subsidies, and we also provide on-the-job training to
our employees. We generally determine employees’ compensation based on
their qualification, position, seniority and performance. We have established
occupational safety and sanitation systems, implemented the national occupational
safety and sanitation rules and standards, and provide employees with workplace

safety training on a regular basis.

In order to improve our communication with customers and their satisfaction,
our Group has established a mobile phone application “Ai Ban (E ##)" for
our property management services among us and the property users. The
advancement in technology facilitates an effective and efficient interaction among us
and the users and allows us to respond promptly to the customers’ needs, which
in tum can also improve our operation planning and efficiency, our service quality

and our customers’ satisfaction rates.
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Our Group has established a long-term and stable working relationship with our
suppliers. We will continue to maintain our assessment on the quality of suppliers,
review the procurement processes to ensure the supply chain sustainability and

uphold high corporate standard when carrying out our services.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
As far as the Company is aware of, the Group has complied with applicable
laws and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies which are

significant to the operations of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during the Year.

Details of the movements in our Company's share capital during the Year are set

out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of our Company during the Year are set out

in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2022 amounted to

approximately RMB246.3 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under our Company’s articles of
association (“Articles of Association”) or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige our Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their shareholding in the Company. If the shareholders
are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in or exercising of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they

are advised to consult an expert.
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“FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of our Group for each of the

last five financial years is set out on page 192 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed

any of our Company’s listed securities during the Year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of our Company during the Year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Director:
Zhu Jie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Zhang Huigi

Wang Jinhu

Liu Zhengiang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Xu Chun

Feng Zhidong

Zhou Sheng

Our Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and our Company considers that all of the independent non-

executive Directors are independent.
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Each of our Directors has entered into a service agreement with our Company
for a term of three years. No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2023
AGM has a service contract with our Company or any of its subsidiaries which are
not determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than

normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of our Directors and senior management of our Group

are set out on pages 19 to 30.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the Year, the Group was engaged in provision of property management
and value-added services and property engineering services to Henan Zensun
Corporate Development Group Co., Ltd* (A EfETX¥EREEBRESL
A A]) (“Zensun Development”) and its subsidiaries (the “Zensun Development
Group), Zensun Enterprises Limited (‘“Zensun Enterprises’”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Zensun Enterprises Group”), Ever Diamond Global Company Limited (“Ever
Diamond”) and its subsidiaries (the “Ever Diamond Group”, together with Zensun
Development Group and Zensun Enterprises Group, collectively as the “Zensun

Group”).

Ever Diamond and Zensun Enterprises are ultimately owned as to 100% and
71.99% by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang")
as settlor and protector. As Ms. Huang is the mother of Ms. Zhang, our non-
executive Director, both Zensun Enterprises Group and Ever Diamond Group
are connected entities of Ms. Zhang. Additionally, Zensun Development Group
are connected entities of Ms. Zhang as Ms. Zhang is entitled to control more than
30% of voting power at a general meeting of members of Zensun Development
Group. Therefore, Ms. Zhang is considered interested in the transactions with
Zensun Development Group, Zensun Enterprises Group and Ever Diamond

Group.
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= Our Group’s transactions with Zensun Group are set out in note 31 to the

consolidated financial statements. For details of the particulars of the transactions
with Zensun Group, please refer to the section headed “Continuing Connected

Transactions”.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to our Group's business to which our Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
any entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significance between our
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder of our Company
or any of its subsidiaries at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
Additionally, no contract of significance for the provision of services to our
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of our Company

or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of our Company's business were entered into or existed during

the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Under the Company's Articles of Association, and subject to the applicable laws

and regulations, the Directors and officers of the Company shall be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company from or against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur or
sustain in or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year. Our Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for Directors' and officers’ liabilities
in respect of potential legal actions against our Directors and senior management

arising from corporate activities.
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DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of our Directors, together with those of the five
highest paid employees of our Group for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 9 to

the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES
As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of our Directors and

chief executive of our Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of our Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or any interest or short positions which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or any interests
and short positions which have to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing

Rules, were as follows:
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%

mp

(i) RBRGF IR

Approximate percentage

Name of Director  Capacity in which the interests are held Number of Share held of the issued share capital (%)
SR BERAESD PR 2B HEBRTRABNBE DL (%)
Ms. Zhang Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 226,350,000 56.59
RRL REAB R (K5E)

Note: 226,350,000 Shares are directly held by Foison Amber Development, which is st - 226350000 A2 R 17 B 56 10 =

indirectly wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, the trustee of the Blossom
Trust. The Blossom Trust is a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as
the settlor, with Ms. Zhang acting as the protector and Ms. Zhang and her
descendants being the discretionary beneficiaries. Foison Amber Development
is wholly-owned by Fast Achieve. Fast Achieve is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Glory Reach Enterprises Limited (“Glory Reach”), which in tumn is wholly-owned
by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, as the trustee of the Blossom Trust. Foison Amber
Development, Fast Achieve and Glory Reach are holding companies of the
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company under the
SFO. Pursuant to the trust instrument governing the Blossom Trust, Ms. Zhang
as the protector of the Blossom Trust has the control over the Blossom Trust,
Accordingly, Ms. Zhang as protector of the Blossom Trust is considered to be

interested in the Shares held by Foison Amber Development.
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(ii) Interests in ordinary shares of associated corporations of our

Company

Name of

Director

BEEnR

Name of

Capacity in which

associated corporation

MEBEE A ERBEESND

the interests are held

(i) RE R EIREB % BE B R P A

Approximate

percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital
shares held )
HEBITRA

BB 2 (%)

FrigiR 88

Ms. Zhang Glory Reach Interest in controlled corporation
(Note I) 00 100
SRt ) R EE e (M)
Ms. Zhang Fast Achieve Interest in controlled corporation
(Note I) 100 100
SRR e NI EE e (M)
Ms. Zhang Foison Amber Development Beneficial owner (Note |) 50,000 100
R L KInERE BEaiA ARRED
Notes: Hiat -
(1) 226,350,000 Shares are directly held by Foison Amber Development, which is (1) 226350000 BRAZ 17 &I % /B E

)

F 3R 2022

indirectly wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, the trustee of the Blossom
Trust. The Blossom Trust is a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as the
settlor, Ms. Zhang acting as the protector and Ms. Zhang and her descendants
being the discretionary beneficiaries. Foison Amber Development is wholly-
owned by Fast Achieve. Fast Achieve is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Glory Reach,
which in tumn is wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, as the trustee of the
Blossom Trust. Foison Amber Development, Fast Achieve and Glory Reach are
holding companies of our Company, each of them is an associated corporation
of our Company under the SFO. Pursuant to the trust instrument governing the
Blossom Trust, Ms. Zhang as the protector of the Blossom Trust has the control
over the Blossom Trust. Accordingly, Ms. Zhang as protector of the Blossom Trust
is considered to be interested in the Shares held by Foison Amber Development
and the total issued share capital of Foison Amber Development, Fast Achieve and
Glory Reach.

Ms. Zhang is a director of both Fast Achieve and Foison Amber Development.
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~ Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of our Directors or

chief executive of our Company had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which: (a) were notified
to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(c) have to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries were a party to any arrangements
to enable our Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares
in, or debentures of, our Company or any other body corporate and neither our
Directors nor any of their spouses or children under the age of |8, had any right
to subscribe for the securities of our Company, or had exercised any such right at

any time during the Year.
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CAPITAL RAISING ACTIVITIES AND THE USE OF

PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

On 9 March 2020 (the “Listing Date"), the Shares of our Company were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and 100,000,000 new Shares were issued
in the Global Offering. After deducting the underwriting fees and commissions
and other estimated expenses in connection with the Global Offering of ordinary
Shares of par value HK$0.01 each of our Company, including, a public offering
in Hong Kong of 50,000,000 Shares and an international offering of 50,000,000
Shares, in each case at a price of HK$1.99 per Share, net proceeds from the
Global Offering amounted to approximately HK$167.8 million (equivalent to
RMB149.6 million). In accordance with our announcement on 3| January 2023 and
the supplemental announcement on | March 2023 (the “2023 Announcements”),
we have updated the expected timetable for use of proceeds and change in
use of proceeds, for details, please refer to the 2023 Announcements. As at 3|
December 2022, our Group had utilised approximately RMB4 1.4 million of the
capital raised as follows:

Utilised
net proceeds

Planned
amount of the

I |
EABETHREBREFE |

MIE AT
AARBROR—_E-_ZEE=RAAB( L
MBBDREIFAERET - BERZ
Bk 2% 2517 100,000,000 X #7 A% » R £
AAREREEIB THNEBR(BIE
& 7 A B % 6 50,000,000 P& K BB 2% &
50,000,000/% * ¥ A BRRAR 5 1998 LK
BT E) 2B ERENRHEER XA
SUREMAGRAZE 2B EMSB
RIEFELN A 678EEBT(HENRAR
Bl4oeEET) - BRERMIN=_ZT ==
F—A=Z+—HMRAERR_E_=F
ZA—HNERAE(ZEZ=ZF2
1) BZMEEFHAERIER A AR
MEMEEMEFIBEALZ  FHEFE2H
TEC=FRE-RTE-__F+=H
=+—8 AEEEROTHAREABA
EEMNESTHVARKEI 48E T

Unutilised
net proceeds

net proceeds
for its
intended use

FrEmEREN
RERZ

Intended use of the net proceeds Percentage

STERE
RERZMN
FrERIERE
RMB’million
AR¥BER

asat

Net proceeds

31 December  utilised during

2021
R=B=-%
=:
=t-Hl
EBRAME
HERH
RMB’million
ARBEETR

the Year

TEE
EBAME
NEFE
RMB’million
AR¥BER

asat
3| December
2022
R-E-Z
t=A
=t-Af
KB AME
HERE
RMB’million
ARBEETR

Expected timeline
for the usage of
the unutilised net proceeds

ABRMENE
FRORBERRR

1) Selective acquision of suitable ERNESE 40.1% 600 - - 600 Onorbefore
acquisttion targets for the expansion ~ HHEBIERMER £ 31 December 2025
of our business R-ZE-RE
TZR=T—H%ZAl
1) Enhancement of our property AR 202% 302 108 - 194 On orbefore
engineening services VERRES 31 December 2025
i
TZA=t—H%H
3)  Enhancement of our property RABME 29.7% 445 105 52 288 Onorbefore
management services NEERRE 3| December 2025
R-F-0F
TZR=T—H%zAl
4) General working capita —HkeEEs 100% 149 149 - - NA
MR
1496 362 52 1082
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= Taking into account the slow recovery of the property market, the Board decided

to devote more resources to enhance the property management and property
engineering services businesses and at the same time continue to seek suitable

targets for acquisitions and investments or cooperations.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the Year, the revenue attributable to the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 14.3% of our Group's total revenue of the Year and
the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 29.3% of

our Group's total revenue of the Year.

During the Year, save for Ms. Zhang's interests in Zensun Group, none of our
Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders (who to the
best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5% of our Company's issued
share capital) had any interest in our Group's five largest customers. For details of
the interest of Ms. Zhang in the transactions with Zensun Group, please refer to

the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”.

Major Suppliers

For the Year, the purchases from the largest supplier of our Group accounted
for approximately 44.1% of our Group’s total purchases in the Year and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 50.7% of our Group's

total purchases in the Year.

During the Year, none of our Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of
the Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of our Company's issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five

largest suppliers.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are provided under note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed "“Continuing Connected
Transactions”, the Board confirmed that none of these related party transactions
constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected transaction as

required to be disclosed under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules, the following transactions

are continuing connected transactions which are subject to the disclosure

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

I. Master Property Management Framework
Agreements
On 18 February 2020, the Company entered into a master property
management framework agreement with each of Ever Diamond (the “Ever
Diamond Master Property Management Framework Agreement”), Zensun
Development (the “Zensun Development Master Property Management
Framework Agreement”) and Zensun Enterprises (the “Zensun Enterprises
Master Property Management Framework Agreement”), respectively
(collectively, the “Master Property Management Framework Agreements”),
pursuant to which we agreed to provide property management and value-
added services to Ever Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and
Zensun Enterprises Group, for a term commencing from the Listing Date to
31 December 2022.

F 3R 2022
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On 28 August 2020, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement
with each of Ever Diamond (the “Ever Diamond Supplemental Agreement”)
and Zensun Enterprises (the “Zensun Enterprises Supplemental
Agreement”’) respectively (collectively, the “Supplemental Agreements”) to
amend certain terms of the Ever Diamond Master Property Management
Framework Agreement and the Zensun Enterprises Master Property
Management Framework Agreement including (i) expanding the property
management services provided by the Group to Ever Diamond Group
and Zensun Enterprises Group to include, among others, security, cleaning,
greening and gardening, parking space management, repair and maintenance
and customer services to sales offices and show flats developed by, and
exclusive use areas designated by, Ever Diamond Group and Zensun
Enterprises Group; and (ii) revising the annual caps for the respective
transactions contemplated under the Ever Diamond Master Property
Management Framework Agreement and the Zensun Enterprises Master
Property Management Framework Agreement for each of the three financial

years ended/ending 3| December 2022.

The revised annual caps for each of the three financial years ended 3|
December 2022 are set out as below, which was duly passed during the

extraordinary general meeting held on 20 October 2020.

2020

—BCEF

RMB’ million

ARBEER

Ever Diamond Master Property KEYEERE 24.0
Management Framework Agreement Y ERE O

Zensun Development Master Property — I[EFE3REYEER 3.0
Management Framework Agreement FEIEZR MR

Zensun Enterprises Master Property FRHEXMFEER 21.0
Management Framework Agreement TBAEZR ok

Aggregate revised annual caps RISTTFE LRAHE 48.0

RZZE-_FFNA=-_+NB "  &AQ
Al Rk ([ KERTHE]) R
FREX(CEREXARBEDT
TR (GBI EREmE]) -
(BRI KB HEEBBIERBZERIE
AEEMETERERRENET
B BREOERASERKES
BN EEEXESEREOMEETE
RBERFE(ETaE) HhakES
EREEEXESERENEZEER
*RERRE - BR - HERE
8. (2HEUEE - #EREREP
AR - AR KEBEBREEESE
SEETHNEREE  Rai)EFTK
BYEXERBERRERIEESE
VTR RIERGRIE T EETH
HATSIRBE_SE-_—F+_A
=+ —BLE=ANBRFESFHTE
EER -

HE-_T-_—_F+-_A=+—H1t
— AR RFESFOLEITFE L
REHIIT EERZZT=ZTF+
AZ+HETHRERNAE LIE
BB -

For the year ended 3|1 December

BEt-A=1+—BLFE

2021 2022
—E—F —=E-=

RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARKBERT AR¥BEER
42.0 455
3.0 3.5
66.0 66.0
111.0 115.0
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Details of the Master Property Management Framework Agreements and
the Supplemental Agreements have been set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 25 February 2020 (the “Prospectus”), the announcement
and circular dated 28 August 2020 and 28 September 2020, respectively.

During the Year, the actual transaction amounts paid and payable by Ever
Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises
Group to the Group for the property management and value-added
services were RMB|3.8 million, RMBI1.6 million and RMB21.3 million,

respectively.

As the Company intended to continue with the Master Property
Management Framework Agreements (and the Supplemental Agreements),
on 20 October 2022, the Company entered into a master property
management framework agreement with each of Ever Diamond (the 2022
Ever Diamond Master Property Management Framework Agreement”),
Zensun Development (the “2022 Zensun Development Master Property
Management Framework Agreement”) and Zensun Enterprises (the 2022
Zensun Enterprises Master Property Management Framework Agreement'),
respectively (collectively, the “2022 Master Property Management
Framework Agreements”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to
provide property management and value-added services to Ever Diamond
Group, Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises Group, which
commences from | January 2023 and continues up to and including 31
December 2025.

F 3R 2022
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The 2022 Master Property Management Framework Agreement and the R _FYEEBRRERTE

annual caps were approved by independent shareholders of the Group FEFRHYR-_ZTE-_—_F+=A8
during our extra-ordinary general meeting held on |5 December 2022. THRBITHRRIEIAE LR

BB ARBLAE o

For the year ending 31 December
BE+-A=1T—HLEE
2023 2024 2025

—EB-= k1 3 —EZHHF
RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBEERT AREBEERT AR¥EER

2022 Ever Diamond Master Property B F 12.7 12.9 13.0
Management Framework Agreement %i%%%%ﬁi
AENEIR thik
2022 Zensun Development Master :‘2::¢ 32 3.7 39
Property Management Framework Eﬁ?@%%%%ﬁ
Agreement HBAER R
2022 Zensun Enterprises Master Property :%::¢ 289 316 323
Management Framework Agreement Eﬁf%%%ﬁﬁ
HENE2R thik
Aggregate annual caps ﬂEJEJ:FE,?E%E 44.8 48.2 49.2
Details of the Master Property Management Framework Agreements have Y ESIRBAIERG NS D RIE
been set out in the announcement and circular of the Company dated 20 NAANRIBEAE-_ZET_-_—_F+A
October 2022 and 24 November 2022, respectively. “t+HEMNAENAEBAE-ZE - —4F

T—AZ+HBEHBEKA -
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Master Property Engineering Framework
Agreements

On |8 February 2020, the Company entered into a master property
engineering framework agreement with each of Ever Diamond (the “Ever
Diamond Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement’”), Zensun
Development (the “Zensun Development Master Property Engineering
Framework Agreement”) and Zensun Enterprises (the “Zensun Enterprises
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”), respectively
(collectively, the “Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements”),
pursuant to which we agreed to provide property engineering services
which include the planning, design and installation of security and
surveillance systems, access control systems, carpark management systems
and construction site management systems to Ever Diamond Group,
Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises Group, for a term

commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022.

The annual caps for each of the three financial years ended 31 December

2022 are set out as below.

— ? —= ﬂi
RMB’ million
ARBEETR

Ever Diamond Master Property KIBYHETIE
Engineering Framework Agreement BIEZR W%
Zensun Development Master Property Eﬁ?‘@%%lﬁ
Engineering Framework Agreement BIESR e
Zensun Enterprises Master Property Efﬁ,\ﬁ"%%l?ﬁmﬁ
Engineering Framework Agreement BIEZR %
Aggregate annual caps FELRARE

2.

YR T RBERGE

R-ZZ-ZF_H+/\B ' ARF
2 Rl E2ox i ([ox B X TRRABAER
il  ERER(EBERDE
TREERGZDMERER( L
BEXVMEIRAERBZ])SE
RIMME TR ARAEZR s (Seil 1)
EXTIREERWZE] - Bt - 3
RIBFKEEE - ERHEREEN
CFRHEXSERENZIERSE(E
BRRELEERS  PIEER &
$ EE/\/)L&@ Iiﬁgf@? WU

BWRE - Rt RLE) HRAH
TR ERE T -_—_F+=A4
:+*E°

BE-_ZE-_—F#+-A=+—H1t
— AV BRFESTFNEE LR
T o

For the year ended 3| December

BEt-A=+—BLFE

Details of the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements have

been set out in the Prospectus.

During the Year, the actual transaction amounts paid and payable by Ever
Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises
Group to the Group for the property engineering services were RMB6.9
million, RMB20.1 million and RMB24.8 million, respectively.

F 3R 2022

2020 2021 2022
:%::

RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBBEERT AR¥BEER

225 215 225

220 220 210

18.5 265 34.0

63.0 70.0 77.5
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As the Company intended to continue with the Master Property Engineering BARARNRIREENTYETIIZE

Framework Agreements, on 20 October 2022, the Company entered ERBZ WA T =_—_F1+A4
into a new master property engineering framework agreement with each —+8- ZIS ANalD Bl EKE ([ =
of Ever Diamond (the 2022 Ever Diamond Master Property Engineering iE T oFEKEWMETIRBIEER
Framework Agreement”), Zensun Development (the “2022 Zensun %) E@mER(ZZE-—F1FH
Development Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”) ?é‘)?&%%Iﬁmﬂ[mea%J)&IE%
and Zensun Enterprises (the “2022 Zensun Enterprises Master Property BE(ZE-_—_FIREEYWET
Engineering Framework Agreement”), respectively (collectively, the 2022 RAERRZE DI HETLRER
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements”), pursuant to which ﬂ: ARG Y ] R — )
the Company agreed to provide property engineering services which include RIEZRED) - Bt ARAER
the planning, design and installation of security and surveillance systems, %[‘Eﬂﬂ@gﬁ%. - EREREEKRIE
access control systems, carpark management systems and construction FEEEBREVETIERS £
site management systems to Ever Diamond Group, Zensun Development EREREERSG  PIREG - 2
Group and Zensun Enterprises Group, which commences from | January B E'““IE,\,,;L&@ Iﬂﬂ'ﬁ“ﬁ? o
2023 and continue up to and including 31 December 2025. MBS REIFERLTE B2

F-A-—BRBBEE_T £¢
TZA=+—B(BFEZBE)IE-

The 2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the TE - FYETRRBIESRE S
annual caps were approved by independent shareholders of the Group in FEFFRHYR_ZE-_—_F+_A8
our extra-ordinary general meeting held on |5 December 2022. THRETHRRENIAE R

BB BIRILE o

For the year ending 31 December
BE+-A=1T—HLEE
2023 2024 2025

—ZE_= —E_OF —E-FRHEF
RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million
AR¥EERT AR¥BERT AR¥EER

2022 Ever Diamond Master Property - —F 129 129 .6
Engineering Framework Agreement KIBYETZ
HEIER ek
2022 Zensun Development Master S 19.3 20.3 21.3
Property Engineering Framework Eﬁ?é@%%lﬁ
Agreement Y ERE S
2022 Zensun Enterprises Master Property :%::fﬁ 26.6 29.7 32.1
Engineering Framework Agreement Eﬁf%%%l@%
HENEZR th ik
Aggregate annual caps ﬂEJEJ:l;E,%@\%E 58.8 62.9 65.0
Details of the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements have Y2 T IR AAEZRIHZAEES D RIS
been set out in the announcement and circular dated 20 October 2022 and = Hﬁ%_giii +A=+HH®
24 November 2022, respectively. NERBH 75'5 —E__F+—R
— AR
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Ms. Zhang is our non-executive Director and one of our controlling
shareholders and therefore is a connected person of our Company. As at
the date of this annual report, 100% of the number of issued shares in Ever
Diamond and 71.99% of the number of issued shares in Zensun Enterprises
are ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang,
who is the mother of Ms. Zhang, as settlor and protector, with Vistra
Trust (Singapore) Pte. Limited as trustee and Ms. Huang and Ms. Zhang as
beneficiaries under the discretionary trust. In addition, Zensun Development
is a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Ms. Zhang. Accordingly, Ever
Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises
Group are considered associates of Ms. Zhang and connected persons
of our Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Master Property Management Framework Agreements, the
Supplemental Agreements and the Master Property Engineering Framework
Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions for our Company

under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule [4A.55 of the Listing Rules, each of the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that each of the aforesaid continuing connected

transactions of the Group for the Year have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.

F 3R 2022
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Pursuant to Rule [4A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged

the auditor of the Company to conduct certain procedures in respect
of the continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Board has received a letter from the auditor containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group and confirming the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information”, the auditor has also reported to the
Board that for the Year, nothing has come to their attention that any of the

aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing

policies of the Group;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the

relevant agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the relevant annual caps for the Year as set by the

Company.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR
As at the 31 December 2022, according to the register of interest in Shares and RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ' BEXRX
underlying Shares and short positions kept by our Company pursuant to Section NEEIRES K HE GBI B X VI E 33615
336 of Part XV of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained after FE 2RO RN EZRS AR ES

reasonable enquiries by our Directors, the persons (other than our Directors or  ffft * AR IEEE B AIAT MK EL & 12
chief executive of our Company) who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% ERRAETE  BEEIHERELRRT
or more in the Shares and underlying Shares of our Company are as follows: f& 0 R ARRERR 1D 5%k A EHEZR 2 A T (F

ERARNARSTRAERINGAT

Long positions in the Shares of our Company REQTRD Z2HR

Approximate percentage

of the issued share capital

Name of shareholder Nature of interests Number of Shares held of our Company (%)
BAERRCET
BRER BEtE iR 8E BABAE 2 (%)
Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited Trustee of a trust (Note) 226,350,000 56.59
EREXFEA (MR
Glory Reach Interest in controlled corporation (Note) 226,350,000 56.59
Rz REEERE e ()
Fast Achieve Interest in controlled corporation (Note) 226,350,000 56.59
HiE REEARE K ()
Foison Amber Development Beneficial owner (Note) 226,350,000 56.59
RINERE EalEa AME)
Eco-Victory Limited Beneficial owner 73,650,000 1841
BEHARAT BESHBA
Note: 226,350,000 Shares are directly held by Foison Amber Development, which is BYRE - 226,350,000 A% A% 17 B &R 30 B R B &
indirectly wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, the trustee of the Blossom FAE - MAIAER B Vistra Trust (BVI)
Trust. The Blossom Trust is a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as the Limited (B EFFENXFEA)HEEE
settlor, with Ms. Zhang acting as the protector and Ms. Zhang and her descendants A SEETAAELLIERME
being the discretionary beneficiaries. Foison Amber Development is wholly-owned BRPARINEEET  AKRLLTHE
by Fast Achieve. Fast Achieve is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Glory Reach, which FREAARKEZ L REBEREBE
in tum is wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, as the trustee of the Blossom XmA - RINBRMFEZEHA -
Trust RERRENZEMBAR - MaE

AllER Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited ({E &2 2
BERENZENREHRE °
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~ Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person other than our

Directors whose interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of our Company, and short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares, that was required to be recorded in

the register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

In order to avoid any future competition with our Group, on 18 February 2020,
the controlling shareholders, Ms. Zhang, Foison Amber Development, Glory
Reach and Fast Achieve (the “Controlling Shareholder(s)”), entered into a deed
of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of our Company
and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition, each of the
Controlling Shareholders has undertaken and covenanted with the Company
that, she/it shall not, and shall procure that her/its close associates and entities or
companies controlled by her/it (other than a member of the Group) not to, at
any time during the restricted period, among other things, directly or indirectly,
either on her/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person,
firm or company (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent, employee
or otherwise) carry on, engage, participate, be concerned or interested in or in
any way assist in or provide support (whether financial, technical or otherwise) to
any business similar to or which competes (either directly or indirectly) or is likely
to compete with any business which is the same as, similar to or in competition
with the current business of our Group, namely the engagement of business as
the property management and value-added service provider to non-residential
properties and property engineering service provider in Zhengzhou, Henan
Province and any parts of the world where our Group or any member of our

Group conducts or will conduct its business (the "“Restricted Business”).

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders had undertaken and covenanted with
the Company that if any new business opportunity which directly or indirectly
competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted Business is made
available to any of our Controlling Shareholders, her/its close associates and/
or any company or entity controlled by her/it, directly or indirectly, whether
individually or together (other than our Group), she/it will or will direct or procure
the relevant close associates and/or controlled company to direct such business
opportunity to our Group with such required information to enable our Group to
evaluate the merits of the relevant business opportunity. The relevant controlling
shareholder will provide or procure the relevant close associates and/or controlled
company to provide our Group with all such reasonable assistance to secure such

business opportunity.

The independent board committee of our Company comprising all independent
non-executive Directors will be responsible for deciding and given the authority to
decide, without attendance by any Directors with beneficial or conflicting interest
in the new business opportunities referred to our Group by our Controlling
Shareholders (or their respective close associates or controlled companies/entities
other than members of our Group), the exercise of the pre-emptive right under
the Deed of Non-Competition. None of our Controlling Shareholders and their
relevant close associates and controlled companies (other than our Group) shall
pursue the relevant business opportunity unless our Company decides not to

pursue such business opportunity.

During the Year, the Company had not received any information from any of
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of any new business opportunity which
directly or indirectly competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted
Business which were made available to any of our Controlling Shareholders, her/
its close associates and/or any company or entity controlled by her/it, directly or
indirectly, whether individually or together (other than our Group). Further, each
of the Controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration to the Company
that she/it had fully complied with her/its obligations under the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year. The independent non-executive Directors had
reviewed the compliance of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition and the
enforcement of undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition, and based on
the above, confirm that each of the Controlling Shareholders have complied with

her/its obligations under the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.
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= Ms. Zhang, our non-executive Director and one of our Controlling Shareholders,

and her close associates have been conducting other business or holding interest
in Henan Zensun Property Management Co., Ltd.* (Al IEPE Y E IR AR
N E]) (“Zensun PM™), a company established in the PRC and indirectly wholly-
owned by Zensun Development as at the Listing Date, which focused primarily on

property management services for residential properties.

In the fourth quarter of 2020, Zensun Development Group sold 91% of its
shareholding in Zensun PM to an Independent Third Party. Following the disposal,
Zensun Development Group remained 9% shareholding interest in Zensun PM
and Ms. Zhang ceased to be a substantial shareholder of Zensun PM. During
the Year, none of our Directors were interested in any business apart from our
Group's business, which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with our Group’s businesses.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by our Group during the Year or

subsisted at the end of the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Detailed information on our Company's corporate governance practices is set out

in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 59 to 81.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, our
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules,
based on the information that is publicly available to our Company and within the

knowledge of our Directors.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Board
on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of the employees. The
emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, the Company's operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes for the employees of the Group are
disclosed in the section headed “Employee benefits — Pension schemes” set out in

note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the above sections, there was no other significant event after

the reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The 2023 AGM will be held on Wednesday, 28 June 2023 and the notice of 2023
AGM will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner as

required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed for the following periods:

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the 2023 AGM expected to be held on Wednesday, 28 June 2023,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 23 June
2023 to Wednesday, 28 June 2023, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the 2023 AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged
for registration with the Company's Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at |7/F Far East Finance Centre, |6 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 June 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Emst & Young, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the 2023
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHU JIE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
29 March 2023
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Our Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board believes that the adoption and adherence to the recognised standards
of corporate governance principles and practices are one of the key factors to
the success of our Company. Good corporate governance provides a framework
for our Group to safeguard the interests of our Shareholders, enhance corporate
value, improve its accountability and transparency in operations, and formulate its

business strategies and policies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance for
enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole. The Company has adopted corporate governance
practices based on the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of corporate governance practices (the “CG Code”).

The Board is of the view that, the Company has complied with the relevant
code provisions contained in the CG Code during the Year, save and except for

deviations which are explained below :

Pursuant to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly internals. Although only
two regular Board meetings were held during the Year, the Board considered
that sufficient meetings had been held as business operations were under the
management and the supervision of the executive Directors. In addition, senior
management of the Group has provided to the Directors the information in
respect of the Group's business development and activities from time to time and,

when required, ad hoc Board meetings were held to discuss such matters.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive of the Company should be segregated. The Company is of the
view that it is in the best interest of the Company that Mr. Zhu Jie, with his
profound expertise in the property business, shall continue in his dual capacity
as chairman and chief executive officer. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is
adequately ensured by the current Board composition and structure taking into
account the background and experience of the Directors.

The Board will continue to review and monitor its code of corporate governance
practices of the Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate

governance.
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DEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES
Our Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the

Listing Rules. Our Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
each of them confirmed that they have compiled with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Year.

Our Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the relevant employees of our Group who are considered likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of our Company or its securities on
no less exacting terms than the Model Code in relation to their dealings in the
securities of our Company pursuant to Code Provision C.1.3 of the CG Code. To
the best knowledge and belief of our Directors, all relevant employees have fully

complied with the required standard of such code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging its corporate
accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of our Shareholders and fulfil his or her fiduciary duties by applying the required
level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory

requirements.
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

Our Company is headed by an effective Board which is responsible for leadership
and control of our Company and formulating strategic directions and monitoring
performance of our business. The executive Director is delegated with the
authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day management of our Group,
operational and business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of our Group. The non-executive Directors (“NEDs") (including independent
non-executive Directors (“INEDs")) of the Company contribute valuable views,

professional opinions and proposals for the Board's deliberation and decisions.

The Board is also responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of our Group. It has carried
out review of the existing implemented systems, including control measures of

financial and operational compliance of our Group.

The Board has established Board committees and has delegated various
responsibilities to these Board committees as set out in their respective terms of

reference.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to the management.
The Board delegated various responsibilities to the senior management of our
Company. These responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating day-to-day operation and management of our
Company in accordance with the management strategies and plans approved by
the Board, formulating and monitoring the operation and production plans and

budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control systems.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of our Company, including
appointment of new Directors, approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant accounting policies, material contracts, significant appointments such as
company secretary and external auditors, terms of reference of Board committees,
major corporate policies such as code of conduct, and other significant financial

and operational matters.
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= All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of our Company

and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at our Company's expenses for discharging their duties to our
Company. The Directors having material interest in the matter shall abstain from
voting at such Board meeting and the INEDs with no conflict of interest shall
attend at such meeting to deal with the matters. All Directors ensure that they
can give sufficient attention to discharge their responsibilities to the affairs of our
Company and our Directors have disclosed to our Company the identity and
nature of offices held in any public organisation and other significant commitments

on an annual basis.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises seven Directors including one executive Director,
three NEDs and three INEDs. Among our seven Directors, one of the Directors
is female and the rest of them are male. The biographical details of our Directors
and the senior management of our Group are set out on pages 20 to 31 of this
annual report. The Board members do not have any family, financial, business or

other material/relevant relationship(s) with each other.

Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this annual report, there is one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhu Jie. He is also the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of our
Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall management and strategic
planning of our Group’s business operations. He provides strategic direction to
our Group, takes primary responsibility for ensuring good corporate governance
practices with necessary procedures established and ensures the effective

implementation of corporate strategy and policies.

Non-executive Directors

As at the date of this annual report, there are three NEDs, namely Ms. Zhang
Huigi, Mr. Wang Jinhu and Mr. Liu Zhengiang. Ms. Zhang Huiqi is primarily
responsible for our Group'’s business development and investor relations. Mr.
Wang Jinhu and Mr. Liu Zhengiang are primarily responsible for providing strategic

advice to the Board.
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Independent Non-executive Directors and their Independence

As at the date of this annual report, there are three INEDs including Mr. Xu Chun,
Mr. Feng Zhidong and Mr. Zhou Sheng. Our Company has appointed a sufficient
number of INEDs in accordance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. With Mr. Feng Zhidong's working experience and academic background in
accounting, our Company considers that he possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and related financial management expertise as required

under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Our Company has already received annual confirmation letters of independence
from all the INEDs and each of them have declared fulfilment of all the guidelines
for assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Board considers that all INEDs are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.

All our Directors, including the NEDs and INEDs, have entered into service
agreements with our Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all

Directors must retire by rotation at least once every three years.

In compliance with Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, an updated list of our
Directors identifying their role and function are available on the websites of our
Company (www.xingyewulian.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk).
Our Company will review the composition of the Board from time to time to
ensure that the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skill
and experience to meet the needs of our Group's business and to enhance the

Shareholders’ value.
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~ Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors. At least 14 days' notice for each regular meeting should be
given to all Directors. All such minutes should be kept by our Company Secretary
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director. Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman should at least

annually hold meetings with the INEDs without the presence of other Directors.

During the Year, two regular Board meetings of the Company were held to
review, consider and approve, among others, annual and interim results and to
review the business operations, corporate governance and the effectiveness of

internal control systems and risk management of the Group.

Liability Insurance for our Directors
Our Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors against liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate activities. Such

insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order
to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Each newly appointed Director is
provided with necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of our Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/

her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.

All Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors would be arranged and training materials or briefings on relevant topics
such as updates on the Listing Rules and relevant financial or accounting standards

would be provided to Directors where appropriate.
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During the Year, all Directors (including Mr. Zhu Jie, Ms. Zhang Huigi, Mr.
Wang Jinhu, Mr. Liu Zhengiang, Mr. Feng Zhidong, Mr. Zhou Sheng and Mr.
Xu Chun) participated in continuous professional development activities by
reading newspaper, joumals and materials and attending training sessions relating
to directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and regulatory
updates. Our Company updates Directors constantly on the latest developments
regarding the Group's business and other applicable regulatory requirements, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. All Directors have provided to our Company with their training records
on a regular basis, and such records have been maintained by the Company for
accurate and comprehensive record keeping. During the Year, according to the
training records maintained by the Company, all of our Directors have (i) attended
seminars/webinars/conferences/forum (including anti-bribery and corruption
training) and (i) read newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,
general business, real estate, corporate governance and director’s duties and

responsibilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established three Board committees including the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee to
assume responsibilities for and to oversee particular aspects of our Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of our Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authorities and duties. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are posted on our Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s

website and are available to Shareholders upon request.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and are empowered to obtain independent’ professional advice at our

Company’s expenses in appropriate circumstances.
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“* Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Feng Zhidong, Mr.
Zhou Sheng and Mr. Xu Chun. Mr. Feng Zhidong, the chairman of the Audit
Committee, possesses the appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in compliance with the CG
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among others, to review
the financial information, oversee the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures, and to be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of the external auditor.
During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were convened. The Audit

Committee had performed the followings tasks, among others :

(i)  reviewed the annual results for the year ended 3| December 2021 and

interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2022;

(i) reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and

internal control systems for the Year;

(i) discussed with the auditor of the Company and reviewed their audit

findings;

(iv)  reviewed the auditor's remuneration;

(v)  reviewed all non-audit services provided by the auditors (if any) to
determine the provision of such services would affect the independence of

the auditors; and

(vi)  performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the corporate

governance policies and practices.
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After due and careful consideration with all necessary financial information, and
reports from management and the external auditors, the Audit Committee noted
that no suspected fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or
suspected infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found in respect of
the Group, and concluded at the Audit Committee meeting held on 29 March
2023 that the risk management and interal control systems were adequate and
effective. Details of the review over the Group's risk management and internal
control systems conducted by the Audit Committee was disclosed in the section

headed “Risk Management and Internal Control”.

On 29 March 2023, the Audit Committee meeting was convened to review our
Group's consolidated financial statements for the Year, including the accounting
principles and practices, in conjunction with our Company’s management and
external auditor; and appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by our Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of
its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in this annual
report has complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
Audit Committee therefore resolved to recommend for the Board's approval the

consolidated financial statements for the Year.

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the reappointment of
Emst & Young as the auditor of our Company and that the relevant resolution
shall be put forth for its Shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2023
AGM.
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“' Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Zhou Sheng,
Mr. Feng Zhidong, and Mr. Xu Chun. Mr. Zhou Sheng is the chairman of the

Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance with
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include but
are not limited to (I) making recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors” and senior management'’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (2) reviewing and approving the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; (3) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors;
(4) reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive Directors and
senior management of the Company for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise
fair and not excessive; (5) determining the criteria for assessing employee
performance, which should reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets;
and (6) ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in the

Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held to review and

approve the remuneration of the executive Director, the NEDs and INEDs.

Pursuant to the extension of Chapter |7 of the Listing Rules which comes into
effect on | January 2023, the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee

were amended and approved by the Board in December 2022.

Details of our Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration of the senior

management by band for the Year is set out as below :

FNsiE

Remuneration band

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZZ | 000,000 7T

BRI 2B AT RIS BIE 28,1 515 -
FEEREEENEMNEERNIDT -

Number of individuals

AE

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of three members, being one executive
Director, namely Mr Zhu Jie and two INEDs, namely Mr. Zhou Sheng and Mr. Xu

Chun. Mr. Zhu Jie is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in compliance with
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include but are
not limited to (1) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of the Board at least annually
and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (2) identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and selecting or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (3)
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (4)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer, taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy
and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future,

together with the Board, as appropriate.
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~“ Nomination Policy

In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee shall consider
candidates on merit and against the objective criteria such as integrity,
experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board

for decision.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held to review the
current structure and composition of the Board and recommended Mr. Liu
Zhengiang, Mr. Wang Jinhu and Mr. Xu Chun to retire, and being eligible, offered
themselves for re-election in the Company’s annual general meeting held on 28
June 2022 pursuant to Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association and
Code Provision A4.2 of the CG Code.

Under Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, at each AGM,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
According to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or by way of addition to their number shall
hold office only until the next following AGM, and shall then be eligible for
re-appointment. Every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every

three years by rotation or offers herself/himself for re-election.
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Board Diversity Policy

Our Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse Board
and considers the increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of our strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. Our Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board (the

“Board Diversity Policy™).

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to be responsible
for reviewing and ensuring the effectiveness and compliance with the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will consider the Board diversity
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of service.

The Nomination Committee shall consider candidates on Board appointments on
merit and against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits and diversity
on the Board. Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's
composition, our Company is satisfied that the composition of the Board satisfies

the Board Diversity Policy.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code
Provision A2.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the Board had reviewed our
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, our Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
our Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.

F 3R 2022

EESZUBEE
AARBANFEESSLLELBER
Z URAEEESERREAZTILA
THEREMERREEERENFERRE
MMETLE - NAREHRMNESSE T
{bBSR - ERSSERREREETSS
TEHBEEERFE(TEETEETLE
)

RAZESHESZERE  KASEMN
&ﬁ%%?ﬁyEMﬁ%ﬁZﬁ@&
SEEK - RBRZBERNZAEEE
E%ﬁymm’@%ﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁﬁ~¢
CXIERBEER  K®H BEL
%ﬁ* TRHE ~ FRE K ARTSF AR -

k%éﬁaﬁM%Amﬁﬁﬁm*ﬁﬁ

EEREEREFTSRIEANE  LWEE
%E%%@%%ﬁk&ﬂf°m%£§
EELTLEBRRMESZTSEKRK AR
ﬂ%%*%%@@ﬁﬁé“%@ it
R ©

J/L\ﬁﬁﬂﬁiééxﬂgﬁf-\b

EE2BERITREEATAIFAIEX
FBALIEFEMBEE - RAFE - £
EEEEHARANCEERABRRLE
B BEERABEENFIILEES
XBREBR  ARAREBTEEREE
RETEOBERERREAQARETER
¥EATHMBRUARR AT EE AR
HRHIRE o

YR SR EAR AT

71



e
/ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREREE

EEHERH
The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board committee TEXFVNAFEESeNEELEeS
meetings during the Year are set out in the table below : Z FREENEFERE

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
HEER, BRITEBRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual

Committee Committee Committee General

Meeting
BEREEE ¥FMZESE REZEE RRAFAE

Executive Director HITEE

Mr. Zhu Jie KRG E 22 N/A N/A /1 /1
i i

Non-executive Directors  FEH/TEE

Ms. Zhang Huigi SREHE L 22 N/A N/A N/A /1
i i el

Mr. Wang Jinhu TeREE 22 N/A N/A N/A /1
i i el

Mr. Liu Zhenqgiang 2Ro8 e 4 212 N/A N/A N/A /1
i i el

Independent BUHBITESE

non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Chun wEEE 2 22 /1 /1 /1
Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE 22 22 /1 N/A /1
i
Mr. Zhou Sheng Bt 22 22 I/1 11 11

72 XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. Annual Report 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREREE

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

The remuneration paid/payable to our Company's external auditors, Ernst &
Young, in respect of audit services for the Year amounted to RMB,450,000. No

non-audit services was provided during the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Statements and Financial Reporting

Our Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of our Group that give a true and fair view in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Our Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
announcements in relation to the consolidated financial statements on annual
and interim results of our Group are published in a timely manner, within three
months and two months respectively of the year end and the half-year period

end.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of our Company on the
consolidated financial statements of our Group are set out in “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 82 to 89.

Going Concern

Our Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
our Group's ability to continue as a going concemn. Our Directors are of the view
that our Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for our Group to

adopt the going concem basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

F 3R 2022

BB 5 A
RAFE « ARABIREBRBE D&
AR R MNEAZ BRAD 22 ok & 5T Bl B A% AT
KIF BN A AR ¥ 1 450,0007T ° RAERE -
I IR IR EARTS -

FEMKREZ
MBHERRMBRE
EFNEREARARUAEBZEA
BB®RE - WRBER G EBRER
EHIENERAGHRERMA T2
5 o

EETATREARMERAKE RS
FRPHXGE 2GRV BEHRR IS
DHINEFEBER=EA RFFHERE
M E A R PRI -

KRRRIINEZBENE RNEE 2 R 6 75
MERMEBEREEHNENRAEEE[ B
ZEAIRE | -

HEKE

RIFELEEERE  EFATHBMEM
ERTHAEHHBERAEETEARE
ERELENEE - BEERRAEEN
BRERER R ARREEZE - Fit
AEBEERMAFELEEERENGS
FATEHRER

YRS S EAR AT

73



74

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREREE

The Board recognises its overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems including conducting an annual
review on their effectiveness for achieving long-term sustainable development of
our Group. The risk management and internal control systems, under a defined
management structure with limits of authority, are designed for our Group to
identify and manage the significant risks to pursue its business objectives, safeguard
its assets against unauthorised use or disposition, enhance effectiveness and
efficiency of its operations, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for reliable financial reporting, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. Such systems are designed to manage our risk exposures, primarily
our operational risk, legal risk and liquidity risk, rather than eliminate risks of failure
in the achievement of our Group’s business objectives and can only provide

reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the determination of our Group's risk profile within
its acceptable tolerance levels in business operation, oversight of management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of overall risk management
process from risk identification, risk assessment, establishment of appropriate risk
responses and regular risk evaluation and monitoring, so as to ensure the systems

are effectively established and maintained.

The interal audit department is responsible for performing independent review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. During the Year, the internal audit department examined key issues in
relation to the accounting practices and all material controls and provided its

findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in establishing formal arrangements to
apply financial reporting and internal control principles in accounting and financial
matters to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and all relevant laws and
regulations. The Board has authorised the Audit Committee to be responsible
for the oversight of our Group's risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on a yearly basis. Such review
covers all important aspects of supervision, including financial, operational and
compliance monitoring. Subject to recommendation from the Audit Committee,
our Company will appoint external internal control advisor to perform periodic
review of our Company’s internal control system to evaluate the effectiveness
and formulate plans and recommendations for improvement of its internal control

measures and policies.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the internal audit
department, reviewed the risk management and internal control systems for the
Year, and considered that the risk management and internal control systems
of our Group are effective and adequate. The review of the risk management
and internal control systems of our Group is an ongoing process and the
Board maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen our Group's control

environment and processes.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”) for its
Directors and relevant employees to ensure that both Directors and relevant
employees are kept abreast of and fulfil a set of defined ethical obligations and
appropriate behaviours when conducting businesses and/or performing their
duties. The Company has also established and implemented procedures for (i)
collection, evaluation and publication of information to ensure timely reporting
of inside information to the Board and the Shareholders; and (ii) responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs. With a view to identifying, handling
and disseminating inside information in compliance with the SFO, procedures
including preclearance on dealing in Company's securities by designated Director,
notification of blackout period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant
Directors and employees, identification of project by code name and dissemination
of information on a need-to-know basis have been implemented by the Group to

guard against possible mishandling of inside information within the Group.
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“ DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the Listing
Rules and the overriding principle that Inside Information should be announced
immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal

controls for the handling and dissemination of Inside Information are as follows:

. the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the "“Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission

of Hong Kong in June 2012;

. the Group has formulated inside information policies and disclosed its
policies on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial reporting, public

announcements and its website;

. the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or Inside

Information; and

. the Group regularly reminds the directors and employees about due
compliance with all polices regarding the Inside Information, as well as keeps

them appraised of the latest regulatory updates.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as
communication among board members. Mr. Chang, Eric Jackson has confirmed
that he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the Year. His biography is set out on page 3| of this annual report in the section

headed "Board of Directors and Senior Management'.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely and effective
communication with the Shareholders and investors of our Company. The Board
also recognises that effective communication with our Company’s investors is
critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore,
our Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure
the Shareholders and the investors of our Company will receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of our Group through the publication
of annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. Any significant
events of our Group fall to be disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate and
complete manner through the websites of our Company and the Stock Exchange,

so as to safeguard our Shareholders’ rights of information and participation.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting/Right to
call an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of our Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
our Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of our Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist as a result of

the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist by our Company.
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“Procedures for putting forward proposals at

Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, However,
Shareholders may request our Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting following the procedures under Article 58 of the Articles of Association as

set out above.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a
notice signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head
office or at the registration office. The period for lodgment of the notices required
under Article 85 will commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period
during which such notices to our Company may be given will be at least seven

days.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at a general
meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice at our Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong. The written notice must state the full name of the person
proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s biographical details as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder

concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written
enquiries to our Company. Our Company will not normally deal with verbal or

anonymous enquiries.

A Shareholder may send an enquiry to the Board at the Company's principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall
state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition,
Shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong share

registrar of our Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company during the Year. A copy of the latest version of our Company’s
memorandum and articles of association is also available on our Company’s

website and the Stock Exchange's website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board considers that having active communications with our Shareholders
and investors is important and this will enhance transparency and clarity in public
disclosures by our Company. Any significant events of our Group fall to be
disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate and complete manner through
the websites of our Company and the Stock Exchange, so as to safeguard our

Shareholders’ rights of information and participation.

Our Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders
and in particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate)
are available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries. The notice of
the general meetings together with relevant documents will be sent out to
Shareholders at least 20 business days before the annual general meeting and
at least 10 business days before all other general meetings. The notice contains
details on the procedures for voting by poll as well as other relevant information

related to the proposed resolutions.
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CIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dividend Policy

This dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy") sets out the principles and guidelines
that the Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of

dividends to the Shareholders.

The Company may, subject to the Cayman Companies Law, from time to time in
general meeting declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the Shareholders
but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board. The Board may from time to time determine to pay to the Shareholders
such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the profits of
the Company and in particular (but without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing) if at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different
classes, the Board may determine to pay such interim dividends in respect of
those shares in the capital of the Company which confer on the holders thereof
deferred or non-preferential rights as well as in respect of those shares which
confer on the holders thereof preferential rights with regard to dividend and
provided that the Board acts bona fide the Board shall not incur any responsibility
to the holders of shares conferring any preference for any damage that they
may suffer by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares having
deferred or non-preferential rights and may also pay any fixed dividend which
is payable on any shares of the Company half-yearly or on any other dates,

whenever such profits, in the opinion of the Board, justifies such payment.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and

in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia :

(@) financial results of the Group;

(b)  shareholders' interests;

(c)  current and projected financial performance of the Group;
(d) growth and investment opportunities;
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(e)  other macroeconomic and microeconomic factors; and

(f)  other factors that the Board may deem relevant from time to time.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend

Policy at any time.

DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and
disclosure compliance purposes only. The information does not represent and
should not be regarded as legal or other professional advice from our Company
to the shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own independent legal
or other professional advice as to their rights as shareholders. Our Company
disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by the shareholders in reliance on any

contents of the section headed "‘Shareholders’ Rights".

CONCLUSION

Going ahead, the Group will continue to review regularly its corporate
governance practices to maintain high level of transparency, to enhance the
Company's competitiveness and operating efficiency and to ensure its sustainable

development and to generate greater returns for the stakeholder.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HENHRE

Ernst & Young
27/F, One Taikoo Place
ﬁj{ 979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Xingye Wulian Service Group Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xingye Wulian Service
Group Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 90 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“'IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSASs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that

context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.
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Key audit matter

BREITER

FRREEE g

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMETEXRNMEEBRETER

Recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets & 5 fE 18 R & #9519 1] [5] 44 1

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets were RMB82,206,000 and
RMB23,074,000, respectively, which totally accounted for
approximately 8% of the current assets of the Group.

RIZE-_—_F+_RA=+—H BEZFREFEKRELD
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We identified the recoverability of trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the financial impact on the consolidated financial statements
and the significant judgements exercised by management in
estimating the expected credit losses of trade receivables and
contract assets, including the existence of disputes, historical
payment record, forward-looking factors and any other available
information that may impact the estimated expected credit loss.
BFIKE S REFHIARR A NEEN AT E TR AR
RESFE  AAREURAMBRRNUBTEMS
BEXN HEEERTEEZREFERENEENTE
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EXfMRE  REERERAEZEGARNEEER
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We obtained an understanding of how management assessed
the expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract
assets, and evaluated the design of key control relating to
the monitoring of the recoverability of trade receivables and
contract assets;
BMTHEEEFHEIRRFERGOWEERMER
BENTANLFEEFERE I RUFEARSNEE
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We evaluated and tested the methodologies and data/
parameters used by management, including the ageing of trade
receivables and contract assets, historical loss information,
probability of default, and expected loss;

B ERARERBRATEREE 28 8FEE
ZRMFIARGHNBERE - BEBEEMN EOXR
TR

We reviewed management’s assessment of the forward-looking
factors, such as the anticipation of the customers' operation,
forecast industry situation and overall economic conditions;
BMEMEEBAEERRNNE - SRR ES
EFEE ~ TTRBTRTRR R BRBLIEMN

We executed the substantive analytical review procedure by
analysing the fluctuations of the balances and the turnover days
of trade receivables and contract assets;
BPIMITERDITERBRR - TER/DITE B RYGK
ERANEBEERBREAEREHKBBENR

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contq)

Key audit matter

BREITER

Recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets £ 5 fEI 518,

FRREEE g

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMETEXRNMEEBRETER
BRIEER A B 1

Disclosures of determination of the recoverability of trade
receivables and contract assets are included in note 2.4
“Impairment of financial assets”, note 3 “Significant accounting
judgements and estimates”, note |7 “Trade receivables”
and note 19 “Contract assets” to the consolidated financial
statements.
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We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables and contract assets against cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation; and
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We also focused on the adequacy of the disclosures of the

trade receivables and contract assets in the consolidated

ST HVET R ET ]~ BRI 7] B S EWGRIE | RMIFE 19T &%) | financial statements.
BE] o BN IR AR RTESRUGERENEED
WEERITD
OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE FHRABHIEMBEE
ANNUAL REPORT
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The ENAEETHEMEREE - Hibfs
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other EBRRFERNERZANEE BTEFHE

than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether

the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial

iR A MR MR PN ®RE -
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statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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ONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contq)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's interal control.
. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHEMRE

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contq)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHEMRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contq)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
, mERmRkHMAEEREE

ﬁ> YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
Il BHE-_T-_—F+_A=1—HIFE

N

2022 2021
—E_—
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
L5 AR®BT R ARBFT
REVENUE Wi 5 321,069 281,660
Cost of sales 5 & PR (221,387) (187,854)
Gross profit EF 99,682 93,806
Other income, other gains and losses, net HAA - Habias K EE
R 5 2,916 16,569
Selling and marketing expenses HERZHEAS (1,250) (1,472)
Administrative expenses TR (35,496) (35,723)
Impairment losses on financial and EREERNEERERSE
contract assets (732) (206)
Finance costs BTSN 7 (134) (205)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRB AT R 6 64,986 72,769
Income tax expense PGB < 10 (17,788) (18,241)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 47,198 54,528
Attributable to: AT RELR -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE PN 47,175 54528
Non-controlling interests FEFEHIE A 23 -
47,198 54,528

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBRRRHMEEAKER
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

R E - A=+ —HILFE

2022

—E—-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BaE ARET T ARBT T

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT/(LOSS) H 2 EiF,(F5i8)
Other comprehensive income that will not be FrRBAETEEHNIEE

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Baz HthE2EEA -
periods:
Currency translation differences PE 5 =%8 3,971 (364)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT/(LOSS) &R E M2 EHEF,~

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (F518) - MBRHIE 3,971 (364)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAXEBALLE
FOR THE YEAR 51,169 54,164
Attributable to: AT (L -
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZ ZEPN 51,146 54,164
Non-controlling interests FEF I RERS 23 _
51,169 54,164

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE R ARIZE#ERIZEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EihERER

THE PARENT
Basic and diluted AN 58
— For profit for the year (RMB cents) —FERNBN(ARES) 12 11.79 13.63
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MR

31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
—==—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
=3 AR®T T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEMKE 13 3,603 1,673
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 2,484 3737
Other intangible asset Hi |\ &= 16 - -
Deferred tax assets ELETRIBEEE |4 1,300 799
Total non-current assets FEREBEELE 7,387 6,209
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade receivables Z 5 W EIE |7 82,206 40,045
Contract assets BHEE 19 23,074 21953
Prepayments, other receivables and TARNRIE - bW RIA
other assets NEAMEE 18 10,841 14,790
Restricted and pledged bank deposits SR R ZHRIRITIE R 20 100 50,100
Cash and cash equivalents e NIBEEEY 20 467,723 399,132
Total current assets MEEEME 583,944 526,020
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables & ZENKIA 21 41,750 22,506
Other payables and accruals H b e 78 M BT E 22 60,609 55,152
Contract liabilities =Y OB=NE 23 66,853 74,040
Tax payable FER IR 956 1,234
Provisions B 24 1,688 1238
Lease liabilities HEAE |5 1,216 [ 514
Total current liabilities mEB ERH 173,072 155,684
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 410,872 370,336
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBARE
LIABILITIES 418,259 376,545

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEMBMRRE

31 DECEMBER 2022

—FE-—HF+-_A=+—H

2022

—ZE-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
et ARET T ARETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Provisions B 24 2,030 1,857
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 2,142 3,590
Deferred tax liability BT IAE (& 14 590 590
Total non-current liabilities SEMENABEERE 4,762 6,037
Net assets BEFE 413,497 370,508
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BATIHEA AL R
Share capital & < 25 3,572 3,572
Reserves s 26 409,902 366,936
413,474 370,508

Non-controlling interests FEFE I A 23 -
Total equity e AR EE 413,497 370,508

Zhu Jie Zhang Huiqi

Director Director

EE EE
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/ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
, SREERBER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE-F-_—FT-A=1—HIFE

. ,;;FT R
1‘ ‘l]“ ‘w WT ﬁ’

Attributable to owners of the parent

EINTE2YN
Statutory
Share Share Merger surplus ~ Exchange Other  Retained Total
captal  premium*  reserve®  reserve®  reserve®  reserve® profits* equity
EEER
BE RivEE afRE  BE EiRE HtRE REEN  ERER
RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETL ARETR ARKTR ARETR ARETR
Note25 Note26() Note 26(i) Note 26(ii) Note 26(v)
Bigks  BRRae()  PER2e() SRR R0
At I January 2021 A\ZZ-—F—-F—-H 3572 254507 (158%4) 13118 (1,246) 1890 60,397 316344
Profit for the year ERET] = = = = - - 54528 54528
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ ERE M 2HEE
Exchange differences on translation BEBNERESY
of foreign operations BiER - - - (364) - - (364)
Total comprehensive income for the year —~ FRZAMALHE = = - (364) - 54528 54,164
Transfer from retained profits ERERBLH = = 5495 = - (5495) =
At 31 December 20 e e - R R B 1) (1589 18613 (1610) 180 19430 370508

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERREEXR
YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE T —F{_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARRRARE
Statutory Non
Share Share Merger surplus  Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  profits® Total interests equity
R
ka  RiaE  afRe fifr EXRE HtRe REE B3t FRNER  BRER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTn ARMTn ARMTn ARMTn ARMTn ARMTn ARMTn ARMTn ARETR
Note25 Note26() Note 26(ii) Note 26(ii) Note 26(iv)
WS MERe()  WRR26Gi) 2 HizF26(iv)
At | January 2022 RZE-“F-H-H 3512 254507 (1589%4) 18613 (1,610) 1890 109430 370508 - 370,508
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - 47,175 47175 3 47,198
Other comprehensive proft for the year - A2 &7
Bxchange differences on translation BERNFHREEL
of foreign operations EREE - - - - 3971 - - 3971 - 3971

Total comprehensive income for the year ERZEMAZSE - - - - 3971 - 47175 51,146 yk} 51,169
2021 final dividend paid BENZE-ERERE - (8180 - - - - - (8180) - (8180
Transfer from retained profts ERERDE - - - 5,286 - - (5,286) - - -
At 31 December 2002 i S

TZA=1-H 3572 Me3T  (15894) 23899 2361 1890 151319 413474 B 4349
g These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB409,902,000 in * ZEEERAER —E-—F+—H

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 (202 1:

RMB366,936,000).

F 3R 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN L=
i o= EE%/)ILE%‘:Z
YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE—_F - —Ff-A=1+—HILFE

N

2022 2021
—=E—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHME
ACTIVITIES RERE
Profit before tax R 758 /1T 58 A1) 64,986 72,769
Adjustments for: AT ZIBELFE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « /B Mk EITE 6 1,064 77|
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6 355 464
Amortisation of other intangible asset H b 8 6 - 302
Finance costs BT RAR 7 134 205
Interest income FEMA (2,539) -
Exchange loss P& 5 518 4,267 -
Impairment losses on trade receivables and B SRR KR
contract assets BREERBERSE 732 206
68,999 74,717
Increase in restricted bank deposits ZIRERITIFFIG N - (100)
Increase in trade receivables B Z UG IEIE I (42,716) (1,742)
Increase in contract assets BHBEEEM (1,132) (11,426)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERTFRIE « E b EYGRIE K&
other receivables and other assets HiEERD, (1) 3,949 (9,879)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables S EMNFIEE I, ORd) 19,244 (2,776)
Increase in other payables and accruals B fth PR IB R EET B RGN 6,802 23,424
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities EHAEORD), LM (7,187) 33,805
Cash generated from operations LSRG 47,959 106,023
Income tax paid EASFTISHE (18,568) (22,206)
Net cash flows from operating activities LRSS RESRE TR 29,391 83,817

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GREHERER
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
R E - A=+ —HILFE

2022
—=E-=

Notes RMB’000
=2 AR¥T T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and

REZFHHRE
RERE
BEYZE  BFEK&REARB

RMB'000
ARBTT

equipment (2,994) (372)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEAEFRORD, (L) 50,000 (50,000)
Investment deposit paid to a third party SNFEZINRER RS (370,000) -
Collection of investment deposits from ME=FWBRKREERE

a third party 370,000 -
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) BB EEE(FTA)

investing activities WEmEFHE 47,006 (50.372)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMEEB S

ACTIVITIES RERE
Dividends paid EATIRE (8,180) -
Share issue expenses paid BTN TR X - (3.354)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BESEB TR S 2R (8,180) (3.354)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRASEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS B 68,217 30,091
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F 3R & KR & EEY 399,132 369,166
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [E RSB &F5E 374 (125)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREER

AT END OF YEAR REEEW 467,723 399,132
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HeRESEEY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERDAT
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FEVBRRRATEE R

consolidated statement of financial position REZEEY 20 467,723 399,132

F 3R 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA SRR MY EE

31 DECEMBER 2022

e

:?::%+:HE+*E

A A T
o
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T

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Xingye Waulian Service Group Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) on 9 March 2020
(the “Listing Date"”). The address of the registered office of the Company
and the address of its principal place of business are disclosed in the section

headed “Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company became
the holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group upon

completion of the reorganisation in 2019.

The Group is principally engaged in property management and value-
added services and property engineering services. The revenue of property
management and value-added services mainly comes from properties
under management, which were developed by the Group’s related party
— Ever Diamond Global Company Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Ever Diamond Group”), Zensun Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Zensun Enterprises Group™) and Henan Zensun Corporate
Development Group Company Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively,

"“Zensun Development Group”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Foison Amber Development Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The
ultimate holding company of the Company is Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, as
the trustee of the Blossom Trust, a discretionary family trust established in
the BVI on 16 August 2019 by Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”) as the
settlor, with Ms. Zhang Huigi (“Ms. Zhang") acting as the protector and her
descendants and herself being the discretionary beneficiaries. Ms. Zhang is

also a non-executive director of the Company.

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PIE e

31 DECEMBER 2022
—E-Ff+=A=+—H

I. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (contq) l.
Information about subsidiaries

AEIREEEE #
EEMBATNER
RATIMTEBRARIWEBEHIIAT ¢

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage of equity
Nominal value of interests attributable
Place and date of issued ordinary/ to the Company
incorporation/registration registered  RAFIE{ERER DL Legal form
Company name and place of business share capital Direct  Indirect  Principal business of entities
AL/ EREER BRIZER/
ARER BANREXHE  CERRAVEE B IRRH R
Siu Wing Holdings Limited BVI United States Dollars 100 - Investment holding =
7 January 2019 ("USD")50000
KAERAR AR ARRAES 500007 100 - REER -
“F-NE-AtH (ESH)
Xingye 10T Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollars - 100 Investment holding -
1 April 2019 ("HK$")10000
EXMBERLA (20 1000087 - 100 BEER -
“F-NFRAT-H (&7l
Henan Xingye Internet of Things People's Republic of China RMB - 100 Property management  Company of
Management Technology Co, Ltd* ("PRC")/Mainland China 100,000,000 limited liability
("Xingye IOT Management”) 20 October 1999
AR RE RN RARAT hEARANE(RE]),/ A% - 100 HxER ERAEAA
(TExmBREE) PR 1000000007
—AMAFTAZTR
Henan Wuxiang Intelligent Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB - 100 Property engineering Company of
Co, Ltd* (“Wuxiang Intelligent”) 9 August 2017 20,000,000 limited liability
MBS ERRRERAR hE/RER AEH - 00 #xIE EREEAR
(M5 EE) “E-tEN\ARR 2000000072
Henan Zhengshang Haoshenghuo Service PRC/Mainland China RMB - 100 Intermediary leasing Company of
Co, Ltd* ("Zhengshang Haoshenghuo”) 20 April 2018 10,000,000 services limited liability
MR AT EEREARAR hE/PER NGt - 00 #HEERB =GN
(ERfFEE]) - \f¥BA=1A 100000007
Henan Xingzheng Hotel Management PRC/Mainland China RMB = 100 Hotel and catering Company of
Co, Ltd* 9 July 2020 10,000,000 operations limited liability
MEAEREERERAR GEVARET: N - 100 JEEREHEZE EREEAT
“EEELANA 100000007

F 3R 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PIE e

31 DECEMBER 2022
—E-Ff+=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (cont) .
Information about subsidiaries (Contq)

AEIREBER ®)
BB ATNER #)

Percentage of equity
interests attributable
to the Company

ADREERERDL

Nominal value of
Place and date of issued ordinary/

Legal form

Company name

AAER

incorporation/registration
and place of business
AL/ AR
ERPYEESE

registered

share capital
BRTEER/
EERBRANEE

Direct Indirect

)3

Principal business of entities

IRXR RRZERA

Henan Laowulao Elderly Care Service PRC/Mainland China RMB = 100 Elderly care Company of
Co, Ltd* 21 April 2022 1,000,000 limited liabilty
MEERLREREARAR) T/ RER AEH - 100 &2 ERELAT
“ECCEMAZT-A 100000070
Henan Kangnuan Yuenian Elderly Care PRC/Mainland China RMB - 100 Elderly care Company of
Senvice Co, Ltd* 26 May 2022 1,000,000 limited liability
MERRhFREREERAA GEVET: ARH - 100 &£k EREEAT
i S ) oy N 10000007
Henan Kangnuan Yueju Elderty Care PRC/Mainland China RMB - 100 Elderly care Company of
Senvice Co, Ltd* 27 May 202 1,000,000 limited liabilty
AERRNEREREERAA hE/RER AEH - 100 EZRH EREEAT
ZZ-FRA-TtA 100000070
Hebi Zhengxiang Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB = 100 Property management  Company of
Co, Ltd* 1 Aug 2022 1,000,000 limited liability
BENLANZEEARAA hE/PERY N - 0 MxEE ARARAH
“R-_ENAT-R 10000007
Anyang Yuexing Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB - 55 Property management  Company of
Co, Ltd* 14 Apni 2022 500,000 limited liabilty
ZhHENEEEARAT hE/hE R N - 55 MxER EREEAT
R _FEAtEA 5000007
Nanyang Jinfu Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB = 51" Property management ~ Company of
Co, Ltd* 25 May 2022 1,000,000 limited liabilty
ELERNRERARAA hE/PER NG - 51 MEER ERALAA
“2-_FRA-11A 1,0000007C
@ The English names of the companies registered in the PRC represent the best & £ R B 57 1 69 2 BT A T FE A9 A 1

HEXEH  REXEBBIAT
BRI A XA
TTUNEFERIAE -

efforts made by the management of the Company in directly translating the

Chinese names of these companies as no English names have been registered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PIE e

31 DECEMBER 2022
—E-Ff+=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which comprise all
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB"), and International Accounting Standards
(“IASs") and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are

rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 3| December 2022.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to

direct the relevant activities of the investee).

F 3R 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PIE e

31 DECEMBER 2022
—E-Ff+=A=+—H

oy
{
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“72.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (onto)

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in
control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group'’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such

control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (contq)

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be

required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the

current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS [, IFRS 9, lllustrative

IFRS Standards

2018-2020 IAS 41

Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and

F 3R 2022
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“92.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (contq)
The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable to the

Group are described below:

(@ Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the "Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer
to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset
or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if
they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations that occurred
on or after | January 2022. As there were no business combinations
during the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the

financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (contq)

(®)

©

F 3R 2022

Amendments to IAS |6 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as determined
by IAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has applied the
amendments retrospectively to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after January |, 2021. Since
there was no sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments did not have any

impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to |AS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g, an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at January |, 2022 and
no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the

Group.
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22 EfBRERKEZZE @)

DISCLOSURES (contdq)

(d)  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out d) EERUBEHETEN—F—N
amendments to IFRS I, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying iﬁ‘?:?i}ﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁiﬁ&
IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendment that is applicable to H)EY| BRI S LR E
the Group are as follows: |5% - BIPR B IS & 2RI

5% - BARR B MR 2RI S |6?—J€
BRI RRRERER | R B & 5
M%MﬁmbﬂKOL%%$
SERERTARFMAT

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity o BIRREITEIRE AR ZE 95
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or (2@ TAH): BEEEE
modified financial liability are substantially different from the R EF el S IE &
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include HEERAEEHEHRS
only those paid or received between the borrower and the MEERKRBEEEZR
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower BIEEMER %5
or lender on the other's behalf. The Group has applied the EREREERARE
amendment prospectively from January I, 2022. As there was A Z B2 X s R
no modification or exchange of the Group's financial liabilities MER  BIEERARK
during the year, the amendment did not have any impact on ERARKE—F XM
the financial position or performance of the Group. FWBMNER - ~EH

ERAIEEEER T
“ZHF-A—BHzz®’

JERZER] AN ° HRNA
SEBERFARERK
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23 ISSUED BUT

NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS |6

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS |7

Amendment to IFRS |7

Amendments to IAS |

Amendments to IAS |

Amendments to IAS | and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts!
Insurance Contracts' >

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 —
Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (the “2020 Amendments”)? *
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments’)?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates!

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January |, 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January |, 2024

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after January |,

2024

° As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS 4
was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before January 1,

2023

8 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial

application of IFRS 17
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (contq)
Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable to

the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from
a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments

are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee uses
in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to
ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January |, 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e, January |, 2019). Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact

on the Group's financial statements.
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (contd)

Amendments to IAS | Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current,
in particular the determination over whether an entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
In 2022, the IASB issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect
the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In addition, the
2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a
right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January |, 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact

on the Group’s financial statements.
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (contd)

Amendments to IAS | Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS | are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments
to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the

accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting estimates are
defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
| January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (contd)

Amendments to IAS |2 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise
a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available)
and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after | January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
or other component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than
leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.
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~“2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Fair value measurement (Contd)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the

use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

Level | — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

24 ERETHERBE 2

AT EFE®)
FERMEENDNTEFBEHRTIES
SEEEBERABENSS RRE
A FEELEFE—REEA
BENGSREERENTIE2H
EMAELLENZRMREN -

AEBRANEFABRTEEE
BERABENBESAFERF
B YRECEHARAIBREAR
EMEE R %R A BRE AR
e

R BRRPAEBHWE R FED
MBEEENMBBEEAHEBR(INT
Pt ) - RIBHEE A TEREM
EBEEANSEERE ABIEET

DR

F—H - BBEEREEXAEGERN
ABRTISNHRE(REHR

%)
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level FZH - BBREATFEAEMS
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is BEANREERAE
observable, either directly or indirectly R(TNwEELEE) &S
ABRNEERE
Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level FE=H — BEBEHATEFENEE

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g, a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and

consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

F 3R 2022
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~“2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Contd)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group fif:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

or

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)
Related parties (Contd)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or

of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iif)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third

party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity

is an associate of the third entity;

(V)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (2)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the parent of the Group.

F 3R 2022
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHBEHME s

116

POLICIES (contq)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets

with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its

estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

W% - BERRBRTE
W% BB R E(ERTERIN)
THIR AR R 5T T & R AR BB
1B - W% - BERREBEEW
RABREEBEEREMNSEER
ANEERKBEEETHERGE
HE K ERTRA -

Y - B REREIE B IRAEE
BEIEEANSH  NEEREE
L BERZEILEAHBRE
AR o WHERIEHFER - T 2R
BEANERBAEATAERESE
MEEREE - MABIWE - |
EREBEATKEE ASEER
ZEAWE - BERREAEREA
BERTERATHNEERIBEDYE
HEME -

FEDNESEREMATAERF
HIMEE S B R - BB MERERIK
AEHFIHREE - RUBEHNTE

follows: FFERMT
Machinery 9.5% 3 9.5%
Electronic equipment and others 19% to 31.67% B M EAM 19%Z31.67%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont'd)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful

life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility
of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure which does not

meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

F 3R 2022
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~“2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful

lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 8 to 10 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,

depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

118 XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)
Leases (Contd)

Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

(b)

F 3R 2022

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers

the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g, a change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to

purchase the underlying asset.
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~“2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured

at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”

below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI")
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,

irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Investments and other financial assets (Contq)

Initial recognition and measurement (Contd)

The Group'’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified

and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the

effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHBEHME s

POLICIES (contq)
Derecognition of financial assets RIERTRMEE
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of SREEGNER  cREENE
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed F—Hosk—AHAEUERMEENH
from the Group'’s consolidated statement of financial position) when: R—E D) EEETIER TR
RBMEAREE RS BB & M
B
0 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or e BEERDIRSRENENE
JEm ¢ B
«  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the - AEFEEEZEHEEEKRIUR
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows SMENERN  KEBREE
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” BIRHAREERESEALERD
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially ERTEE2HABRERES
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither NTE=AHEME: &(a)$'$
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the EEEEEENBALSR
asset, but has transferred control of the asset. KB - )& SIEE@E
ERREEENBAI D
KR - EEEEEENE %‘J
1 o
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset MAEEDEEZHEEEWEIRS®
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what MERERN - KEFTVUBELH -
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When HETHEREREZBEENRE
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards BRERRNRMIARREBNIZE -
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to i AN SE B EE R sl (R B EE AR
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing RNEBD SR KB - INEEEE E
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. ROPEHIRE - BIAREBEEESEN
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis B THREEREE - TZER
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. T AEBERAEAE 28

REENRBBERBNRRRAKE
EREBEMNEEHNELETE -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conrg)

Derecognition of financial assets (Contd)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could

be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has
not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a |2-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When
making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information.
The Group considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk

when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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~“2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

General approach (Contd)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit

enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of

recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets

which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage | — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss

allowance is measured at an amount equal to [2-month

24 ERETHERBE 2
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Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased fEER2 — eRIAMNGERRE
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit- IR B E L M

impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and

accruals and lease liabilities.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in

profit or loss.
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~“2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contd)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash

management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including time
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to

use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of

time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the provision of property
engineering services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period of two years. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume and estimation

of the level of repairs, discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)
Income tax g
P88 & 5 BN HA MR I FR 7 o B

24 ERETHERBE 2

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to

items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

(i) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with iy FERMBARMNEESHEN
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the FERMEREREm S  BEE
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temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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~“2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Income tax (Contq)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

(i)  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss; and

(i) in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow

all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Income tax (Contq)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that

the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange

for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the goods or services provided in the ordinary course of the

Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of taxes.
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~“2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)
Revenue recognition (Contq)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

(@)

(b)

©

Property management and value-added services

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed amount for
services provided on a semi-annual basis and revenue is recognised
over the service period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the

Group.

For value-added services, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the related value-added services are rendered. Payment of the
transaction is due immediately when the value-added services are

rendered to the customer.

Property engineering services

Revenue from the provision of property engineering services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the services, because the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date. The input method recognises
revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the property

engineering services.

Club house setvices, including catering and ancillary services

Revenue from club house services, including catering and ancillary
services, is recognised at a point in time when food, beverages and
other services are delivered to or rendered to the customer, generally

on the acceptance of the services by the customer.

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

24 ERETHERBE 2

W TR (&)

FEESE#Wa (&)
(@) YEEERIEERE

®)

©

IWORERRBME - AEE
FHFRIBEMN RS L ER
FRE - BARFPRKERE &
FERASREATRRHEMT L - 8
Yo s 10 AR 7% HA 0 12 B AR T

o

SLIBERBME - Wt NEEH
18 B8 35 18 AR 765 A0 K 8 By B4 T
R o RHNFRATFIRHE
1B AR T 5 BN BF £

YFETIERTE
RHYME TR SR
EREHEEMER - EhE

RRNENFT EES T2 BT
RISEVEE - L TIRRAEE
BAORBEHAEBAEEN
RZENEE  MASEEARR
HMITHRKIE S E KRB
DR - RAZRIBER
LERANEHETOETIER
TS At RS A RE O L ] T FE SR
Yo

o

B

IR (ERAEKRIER
%)

SRS (BRERREER
B RRERRY - Kam M
Hi RS AHRETEFH
A E (— R AT PEKRS
R ) RERR ©

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PIE e

31 DECEMBER 2022
—E-Ff+=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)
Revenue recognition (Contq)

24 ERETHERBE 2

W s FERR ()
Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd) EFEAIWE ()

(d)  Online group-buying services (d) %’725' FEARTS

Revenue from online group-buying services is recognised at a point M4k B ARFS A N TV R & fh
in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, EI']T HlEES % P e E
generally on the acceptance of the goods by the customer. (—RATPHIEmK) #
R e
(e)  Charging pile services (e) FIERTE

HAEBRBMES @ TEAR
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For charging pile services, the customers need to pay in advance, and
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the related services are

rendered.

Other income

AR A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter

period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring

goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
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or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned

consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment

assessment, details of which are included in the accounting policies for B ABEEBETRENL &
impairment of financial assets. HESTIE SR EEREN et
#p o
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~“2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contq)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the

related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme. All contributions to the Central Pension Scheme vest immediately
and there are no forfeited contributions under the Central Pension
Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce its existing level of

contributions or contributions payable in future years.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the

shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised

immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EAEHBERE »)

POLICIES (contq)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement

or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.
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POLICIES (contq)

Foreign currencies (Contd)

The functional currencies of each entity in the Group may be currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to those

prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income

relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the

weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (contq)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with

customers:

Determining the timing of satisfaction of property engineering services

The Group concluded that revenue for property engineering services is
to be recognised over time because the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an altemative use to the Group and the Group has an

enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (contq)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Measurement of progress toward complete satisfaction of
property engineering services

The Group uses the input method to measure the progress toward
satisfaction of the performance obligations, and specifically, the proportion
of actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs. The Group
determined that the input method is the best method in measuring the
progress of the property engineering services because there is a direct
relationship between the Group’s effort (i.e., costs incurred) and the transfer
of goods and services to the customer. The Group recognises revenue
on the basis of the costs expended relative to the total expected costs
to complete the services. Actual costs incurred include direct and indirect
costs in the process of transferring goods and services from the Group to
customers. The Group believes that the contract price is based on costs.
Therefore, the proportion of actual costs incurred relative to the total
expected costs can reflect the progress toward satisfaction of the property
engineering services. Since the duration of the performance obligation is
relatively long and it may fall in two accounting periods, the Group will
review the contract, revise the budget and adjust the revenue accordingly as

the contract is carried forward.

Provisions

Significant management estimates are involved in the determination of the
cost of assurance-type warranty to be incurred during the warranty period.
Accordingly, management exercises considerable judgment in determining
whether there is a present obligation as a result of a past event at the
reporting date, whether it is more likely than not that such warranty services
will result in an outflow of resources and whether the amount of the
obligation can be reliably estimated with reference to the size of the project,
relevant correspondence and contracts with customers. Management
estimates the cost for warranty services with regard to the Group's

experience in addressing such matters.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (contq)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables
and contract assets. The provision rates are based on ageing for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by

customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-

looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic
conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in notes |7 and 19 to the

financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (contq)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit

rating).

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based
on their services and has three reportable operating segments as follows:
(@)  Property management and value-added services

(b)  Property engineering services

() Others*

ko The “Others” segment comprises online group-buying services,charging pile services

and club house services,including catering and ancillary services.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Gontt) 4. %&%’“‘Bﬁﬂm

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments EEEBOREERERSKEEDEL
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation KB D B E IR MR ,d(f/l;tb'
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on YREE o D EMAE IR IE ] 2 ¥ 26

reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss ARG - AR ARG AN
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with B/ BB EIER - LHERB
the Group's profit before tax except that head office income and expenses AEA RN E AR AEE
are excluded from such measurement. BRBADRNAER - BT ETE

REBWARSE -

Segment revenue 2 EB Uk z=
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Property management and value-added services )2 &R [ B8 {E RS 256,775 228,374
Property engineering services Y5 TR 50,819 45722
Others Hit 13,475 7,564
321,069 281,660

Segment results

2021
—E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Property management and value-added services )% & 12 NI {E AR 74,707 76,737
Property engineering services EMRES Y 1,429 2,78
Others =) (4,033) (3,687)
Segment results DEREELE 72,103 75,831
Reconcdiliation: R -
Unallocated income AOBLUA 16 645
Unallocated expenses ROBLFAZ (7,133) (3.707)
Profit before tax KR B B E A 64,986 72,769
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (contg) 4.

Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the

ResBER @)
SEUBERB BB EENE
WERMR - ZEEENBBRIEL

financial statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on the

140

operations of the segment, the segment liabilities exclude deferred tax ENHHE - HHBETRIFRE
liability and tax payable. MIEBENENTIE -
Segment assets DEEE

2022 2021
—E2-
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Property management and value-added services )2 &R [ B8 {E RS 495,496 471,425
Property engineering services Y5 TR 88,448 55916
Others Hit 3,312 596
Segment assets DEEE 587,256 527937
Reconciliation: EL
Unallocated assets KOBREE 4,075 4292
Total assets BEHRE 591,331 532229
Segment liabilities FLEBE
2022 2021
—=E_= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Property management and value-added services )2 &1 I HE{E RS 133,739 141,552
Property engineering services W TIERES 37,000 17,860
Others Hith 3,807 469
Segment liabilities DEBE 174,546 159,881
Reconciliation: Bl 30
Unallocated liabilities AOBECRE 3,288 1,840
Total liabilities BB 177,834 161,721

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (contg) 4, REFBER )
Other segment information Htb o #&E ¥
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—_FE-——fF+=-H=+—Hi
FE

Property
management

and Property
value-added  engineering

services services Others Total
NMEEER JES
HERS TRR% Hity 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR

Additions to property, plant and equipment  REWIE - BE K& & 2,952 - 42 2,994
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% = KR & 1,002 39 23 1,064
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 166 - 189 355
Impairment on trade receivables and B HRWFIER
contract assets BHEERE 448 294 (10 732
Year ended 31 December 2021 Br—FT—-——fFf+—_H=+—HI
FE
Property
management
and Property
value-added engineering
services services Others Total
MEERK S
RERE TRR% Hith a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT AR®TT ARETR
Additions to property, plant and equipment  REYIE BB Kk E 276 8 78 372
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% /= KR HEITE 723 36 12 771
Amortisation of other intangible asset Hi\y &8y 302 - - 302
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEESERE 275 = 189 464
Impairment losses on trade receivables and & S EMGIIE K
contract assets BHEEREEE 115 66 25 206
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (contq)
Geographical information

Since the Group has operations in Mainland China only, no further operating

geographical information analysis is presented.

Information about major customers

Revenues of approximately RMB45,884,000 (2021: RMB46,835,000) and
RMB20,732,000 (202 1: RMB25,693,000) were derived from sales of services
to a group of entities which are controlled by Zensun Enterprises Group

and Ever Diamond Group, respectively.

Except for those mentioned above, there was no single customer from
which the revenue amounted to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue

at the end of the reporting period.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS

AND LOSSES

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

kE#E
AT -

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Types of services ARTSEREY
Property management and value-added services ¥ E 12 K 34 {E R 7% 256,775 228,374
Property engineering services YETIZRTS 50,819 45,722
Others EAh 13,475 7,564
321,069 281,660

2022

—ZE2-

RMB’000
AR®T

Timing of revenue recognition

Yok FERR A

2021
—E-—F
RMB'000
AREFTT

At a point in time RE A5 BT &S
Value-added services 1B AR TS 2,177 5,039
Others Hity 13,475 7564
Over time R—EREFE]
Property management MEER 254,598 223,335
Property engineering services Y5 T2 R 50,819 45722
321,069 281,660

F3R 2022
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES (contq)

The following table shows the revenue recognised in relation to contract

liabilities carried forward from the end of the prior year:

g~ HAWA - bl

KEE#)
TEHIIS L —EEREFENED
B ERTRERUS -

2022 2021
—E—-= —E——F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T BEAEESTIE

Types of services AR AR

Property engineering services Y= TIRRTS 4,005 2,202

Property management and value-added services ¥ %E 12 K 34 (E AR 7% 70,035 38,033
74,040 40,235

Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is summarised

below:

Property management

The performance obligation is satisfied over time and payments are
generally paid in advance. For property management services, the Group
recognises revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice
and the amount corresponds directly with the value to the customer of
the Group'’s performance to date. The Group has elected the practical
expedient of not to disclose the remaining performance obligations for
property management. The majority of the property management service

contracts do not have a fixed term.

Value-added services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and payments are
generally due when the services are rendered. For value-added services,
they are rendered in a short period of time and there is no unsatisfied

performance obligation at the end of each reporting period.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS

AND LOSSES (contq)

Performance obligations (Contd)

Property engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered
and payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. A
certain percentage of payment is retained by customers until the end of
the retention period as the Group's entitlement to the final payment is
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a

certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) of property engineering services as at the

end of each reporting period are as follows:

g~ HAWA - bl

KEEm®

BREEE)

YWE TR

ZBAE AR RIS ER SN — R
FrfEER - RGBT AREE B
HI0KFIHEN - REGRBET
BN RE S RESER 1D
FR A A 4957 BE 7 2 B U R R HA 1+ 2k
IR BRR P B B RS TE ) — ER B
AN RGEEERTRE -

REREHR - DEEMETER
B TROBECRERIE D RE
)RR ZERIT -

2022 2021

—E-=

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Amounts expected to be recognized as revenue: T HER AU HISFE ¢

Within | year —FR 42,806 54,603
| to 2 years —ERE 5,714 16,127
2 to 3 years WE=4F 144 15810
48,664 86,540
Club house services, including catering and ancillary services =R (O IEEE R ERE)

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when food,
beverages and other services are delivered to or rendered to the customer
and payment is generally due within 30 days from delivery. There is no
unsatisfied performance obligation for club house services, including catering

and ancillary services, at the end of each reporting period.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS

AND LOSSES (contq)

Performance obligations (Contd)

Charging pile services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and payments are
generally paid in advance. For charging pile services, the Group recognises
revenue based on the amount actually consumed by customers. The
Group has elected the practical expedient of not disclosing the remaining
performance obligations for charging pile services. The majority of the

charging pile service contracts do not have a fixed term.

Online group-buying services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and payments
are generally due when the services are rendered. For online group-
buying services, they are rendered in a short period of time and there is no

unsatisfied performance obligation at the end of each reporting period.

An analysis of other income, other gains and losses, net is as follows:

g~ HAWA - bl

KEEm®

BREEE)

ZEBIRHS

SENEIRE —BSRISNER A —
WIBAT AT - A BBERBEM
T AEERBEPERNBNS
RS - AEERBETTR
EXEBRRESRTRAETHER
ATRENE - AZBREBRS
A 4030 4% B F AR

A5 B R 7

FZBHNEERNE —RHEBEK BN
KRR EEERGE 2 - pLA4
BEREME  ZEFHREHE
#H EREREHPRLERENR
o

EA - bl REEFED
R -

2022 2021
—E—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Government grants* BT 4 By 1,924 6,029
Interest income FEUA 5,259 10,326
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N = RR R (4,267) 214
2916 16,569
& Government grants relate to income that are received or receivable as * BT B B E 5 B A B 7 Bt &

compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs. These
government grants are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FRBiAIEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): N5 B /Y BR R AT S B SRR, (B
ANATEIEZFH -
2022 2021
—=E—= T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Cost of services provided PR RIS A AN 221,387 187,854
Depreciation of property, Mm% - BB &
plant and equipment (note |3) JABITE (FIE13) 1,064 771
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note |5) EREEETE (FisEI5) 355 464
Amortisation of other intangible asset Efth A & B O - 302
Research and development expenses HEER 3,218 4076
Auditors’ remuneration A LGHERT) 1,450 1,450
Employee benefit expense EEBAFX
(including directors’ remuneration): (PRESFH) :
Wages and salaries ITERF® 45,649 38,394
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 4,622 4,882
Impairment losses on trade receivables and B ZEMWRIA K
contract assets BREERERBE 732 206
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAREAAR

2022
—s-=

RMB’000
ARBTT

Interest on lease liabilities (note |5)

HER BN S PHEEIS)

134

2021
—E-—F
RMB'000
ARET T

205
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

8. EERESITHAEHM

BB EmRRA - FECRAEEIDE
383(N@) * (b) * () KN IERLAT]
(BRBEEEFEER) RO 250 5
BENEERESTHRABRAFL
BT -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Fees we
Other emoluments: HipE S -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEDNG 656 832
Pension scheme contributions RAREFTEIMHRK 26 26
682 858

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year

were as follows:

(@) BYFHITES
RNEEZNTELIERITES
BT -

2022 2021

—E—-= —E——F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREETIT

Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE 120 120
Mr. Zhou Sheng Sl 118 108
Mr. Xu Chun RERE 120 120
358 348

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (202 1: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8 EERBSTBRASHEM | |

REMUNERATION (contq) (#)
(b) Executive director and non-executive (b) HITESRIHITES
directors

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme

in kind contributions Total

- 31 BAKE

REYRN = sHEIRK #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR®TR AR®TR

Year ended 3| December 2022 BE-_ZT-—F
TZA=T—HBIEEE
Executive director: WITES :
Mr. Zhu Jie* RANTEAE 298 26 324
Non-executive director: JEHITES
Ms. Zhang Huiq SR+ - - -
Mr. Wang Jinhu FEESE - - -
Mr. Liu Zhengiang BItRo8 5t 4 - - -

298 26 324
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T R
A ‘W,Fﬂj;h
"8, DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8 EERESTHASTH
REMUNERATION (contq) (%)
(b) Executive director and non-executive b) HTESRIHITES

directors (Contd) (&)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme

in kind  contributions Total

¥ 2R Py Ny

KB e BN #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETIT ARETRT ARBTET

Year ended 3| December 202 | BE—_T—-—%
+—A=+—BLt&FE

Executive director: WMITES :
Mr. Zhu Jie* RIS 484 2% 510
Non-executive director: HEITES -
Ms. Zhang Huiqi SR+ = = =
Mr. Wang Jinhu FEESE - - -
Mr. Liu Zhengiang GG e = = =
484 26 510
& Mr. Zhu Jie is a chief executive officer of the Company. He also served & KA ERBLERATEAEE, o 17
as chief executive officer in Xingye IOT Management. His remuneration B N HE (TR B A E R A 7T I
disclosed above included the remuneration for the services rendered by him M o FXETREZ KBz €
as the chief executive. IE 15 BT AEZ IR A AR 5 Y
Bz -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief TR BREFHASERITHRAEN
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the RAFBHETMFMOZI(=F
year (2021: Nil). ——F e
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—FE-—HF+-_A=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one director (2021:

one), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (202 1: four) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

Company are as follows:

9. AEREFMNES

FRN hemayMEERE—%
EE(ZZT=—F:—38) EFHHW
FEEN LM - FN - B
THO&(ZE=—%F : ORK)FARQ
REZEHURETRABNES 5B

EEFMFRBOT :

2022 2021

—E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®EF T ARETIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He  EBLREYAE 1,000 1,516
Pension scheme contributions BRIRBETEIHFR 132 132
1,132 |,648

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

HIHNFATHRENIFES KR
=BITBA B RS HMESHAZD

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/4 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

F 3R 2022

RER - AEEMERENESS
hEsaFMAL(BRESERE
B)HMEMBE - 1EARSIIARK
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K —E-Ff+=A=+—H

10. FTS BRI

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in or AEBESRASENXE R BFEMK

derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are domiciled NN AR S SRS PR RERE R P EE A

and operate. kR ER B R IR B B8 B E BN P15
7 o

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI, the BEREHEREBREZEHESRA

Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI. MER  AEEBEARFAERS R

IR B LB S MRS ©

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC and the respective RIBCR B EAERHE) R E AR
regulations, except for Zhengshang Haoshenghuo which enjoyed a RE  BREBTEERBREH=ZSE
preferential enterprise tax rate of 5% during the reporting period, the BEBEMRFHRBENIN - £
subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are subject to enterprise A 345 2 H B BB A B ZB 4% E R A Uk
income tax at a rate of 25% on the taxable income. A25%8 R KPS ©
2022 2021
—E——
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Current BEA 18,289 18,474
Deferred (note 14) ERE (M 14) (501) (233)
Total tax charge for the year FAMBIBERZ 2% 17,788 18,241
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T~

- P

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conr) 10. FriSHiBExZ e "
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the BEKXZHHE AR FTEREER
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of its subsidiaries are B TE B R 5T E A BR B R v A1) A
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation MIERY AIRERHRETE NI IE
of the applicable rate (i.e, the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, is as B 32 B 39 BR NGB R A R (BDAE
follows: R)EEETRAEROT ¢

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT
Profit before tax BRA A8 A 64,986 72,769
Tax at the statutory rate of 25% 1RS9GETER RGN 16,247 18,192
Different/preferential tax rate applicable to MB A REANTR,
subsidiaries BEEHRE 2,096 314
Expenses not deductible for tax TR B2 24 54
Income not subject to tax HARBA (722) @n
Tax losses not recognised REERTIAEE 486 380
Effect of super deduction of research and & ABENRNT 2
development expense (343) (628)
Total tax expense for the year FATIER < 485 17,788 18,241
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

31 DECEMBER 2022

1. DIVIDENDS

| ‘UT”;H y
. i

1. IRE

2021

2022

—E-

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

BE RS
Bk SR AR EARLE

Proposed final dividend
Final dividend declared and paid

- 8,180
8,180 =

The board does not recommend the payment of the final dividend in

respect of the year ended 3| December 2022.

Final dividend of HK$2.50 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB2.045
cents) per share, amounting to approximately HK$10,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB8,180,000) was declared during the year ended 31
December 2021 and paid on 12 August 2022.

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

ESEe T TERMBE_T =
TZA=T—BEFEIRNRHRK

B o
TN

& ££4910,000,0007% 7T (FHE R LA
R #8,180,0007T ) A K HA Ak B & i
2508 U (HEE RO ARE204559)
ERBE_E-_—F+=-A=+—
BEFESRTA-ZE-_—_F)\A
+ = BIRf -
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—FE-—HF+-_A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 400,000,000 (2021:
400,000,000} in issue during the year ended 3| December 2022.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021.

The calculation of basic eamings per share is based on:

EBATREREREEAE

HEREF
BREARFSEHRES QR
Lh%\ﬁﬁA$E$WmﬂM
RBE_FT-_—_F+-A=1+—
HIEFERRTERRKRAMET
¥5 £7400,000000 % (=& = — & :
400,000,0008%) 51 & o

BE_E-_—F#R-_FT-_—F+=
ﬂ—+—5¢¢f'$¢lﬁﬁa
TT EI] /gﬁﬁ/ﬁ El

2022
—=E-=

RMB’000
AR®T

RMB'000
ARETT

Earnings BF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

of the parent used in the basic eamings

SHEESRERRNEERDN
SRREBEERFEA

per share calculation iyl 47,175 54,528
Number of shares
BAEE
Shares il

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year used in the basic eamings ~ FAE 377X A%
per share calculation I35 88

SHEERERRNIEERDN

400,000,000 400,000,000

F 3R 2022
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13. 155 - MERRE

Electronic
equipment

Machinery and others Total

Hes met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®TR

3| December 2022
At | January 2022:

Cost R 240 4,267 4,507
Accumulated depreciation ZFHiE (73) (2,761) (2,834)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 167 1,506 1,673
At | January 2022, net of R-ZE-—F—HF—H8 -
accumulated depreciation ik 2t E 167 1,506 1,673
Additions NE 2,952 42 2,994
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE 314) (750) (1,064)
At 31 December 2022, net of i S
accumulated depreciation +=—A=4+—
MERR aﬁﬁ% 2,805 798 3,603
At 31 December 2022: i —
+=A=+—8:
Cost (DN 3,192 4,309 7,501
Accumulated depreciation Z2EtineE (387) 3,511) (3,898)
Net carrying amount AREHE 2,805 798 3,603
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contq) 13. % - BERKZE =

Electronic
equipment

Machinery and others Total
BTRE

Hes KEAh st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARBTT ARBTT

31 December 2021 —EZ-_—%+=-A=+—H
At | January 2021: R_ZE_—F—H—H8:
Cost (DN 177 3958 4,135
Accumulated depreciation RitinE (55) (2,008) (2,063)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 122 1,950 2072
At | January 2021, net of W_ZE_—%—HA—H"
accumulated depreciation Mk 2tiTE 122 1,950 2,072
Additions = 63 309 372
Depreciation provided during the year FRNITERE (18) (753) (771)
At 31 December 2021, net of R-Z——4F
accumulated depreciation +=ZA=+—8"
kR REHTE 167 1,506 1,673
At 31 December 2021: R-T-—4F
+=-A=+—8:
Cost (DN 240 4,267 4,507
Accumulated depreciation Z2atieE (73) (2,761) (2,834)
Net carrying amount AREH{E 167 1,506 1,673
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. DEFERRED TAX 14, IEIEFIE

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows: REMIBEERFAZBAT
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE

Impairment Tax
losses losses Accruals Total

HERR BIAER EER s

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

At | January 202 RZEZ—F—A—H 253 - 313 566
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FRA/(I%RE)

statement of profit or loss during the year 1Bz &R MIRETI A

(note 10) (HEE10) (106) — 339 233

Deferred tax assets as at 3| December 2021 RNZZE=—4

and | January 2022 +-A=+—EBEK
—T__5—f—HH
BIEHREE 147 - 652 799
Deferred tax credited to the statement of AT AR
profit or loss during the year (note 10) EEBIE (MEE10) 148 - 353 501

Deferred tax assets as at 3| December 2022 N=—Z = =4

+-A=+—HfK
EXHARE 295 - 1,005 1,300
Deferred tax liability EAEBIESE
Withholding
taxes
AmB
RMB’000
AR®T R
At | January 202! WZZE=-—F—H—H 590
Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or FARBEmKZTBRAE
loss during the year (note 10) R (FIFE10) =
Gross deferred tax liability at 3| December 2021 and RZBE_—F+A=1t—HK
| January 2022 R HE-A-BMECHIBERELESE 590

Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or loss during  SF IR B 28X F0K HE T F: 18 (B 5E 10)
the year (note 10) -

Gross deferred tax liability at 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-A=+—HHK
EXER I B BARE 590
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14. DEFERRED TAX (contd)

Deferred tax liability (Contd)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB975,000 (2021:
RMB496,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the

tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 0% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from | January 2008 and applies to eamings after | January 2008.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in

respect of earnings generated from | January 2008.

The Board distributed certain dividends to overseas holding companies from
the distributable profit earned by Xingye IOT Management in Mainland
China from | January 2020 to 31 December 2020. Therefore, the Group
is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by Xingye IOT
Management established in Mainland China in respect of earnings from |
January 2020 to 31 December 2020 and a deferred tax liability amounting
to RMB590,000 was recognised regarding the withholding taxes as at 31
December 2020.

F 3R 2022

14. IR IE ()

EEHEEEE)
REBNREBELZHERBIEAA
R#975000t(ZFE=—F : AR

#496,0007T) - AR HYHE 354
FEABR AR BRERT G
F o ARELERBEERBERS
Rz MBAR - UL ERZEE
BRAECHAEE - MARA]R
RATRER B Al T EA 2 FE R B 7
LA SHA] TV A 2 BIRE 1R ©

BEPRPEMEHE - HRFPEH
A ER 37 B HNED 1R B 1 2 W) S EE
REES SRS 0%H TR
MeoZREB=EZTNE—H—H
BEM  BERAR-_ZZN\F—A
—B2ZEBHEF) o i B BN
BENRNEER ZHEBHRBHE -
A EARENTBNB R o HRA
£E8 BRAMEAI0% - Bt - &
K%lﬁTE$ﬁmmﬁﬁ2WE

NARZTTNF— A —HAER
Bz BMMAEEEMNRE - K&
E /Bt AR TEORS -

ETHEEYREEN_T=-F
F—A—HAE=-ZE-_ZTF+=A
=+ —HESR BRI 5
MBI TIBIMERAT - Bt -
ANE B A B AP B O K 37 A L 2
%%Eﬁﬁ \—E-_TF—H—H

—TETFE+A=+—HHRA
ﬂ%m%m% HRFER - W
—ETFE+A=+—HBpEM
TR AER A R #590,0007T FY IR E R TH
afE-

YRS S EAR AT
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31 DECEMBER 2022

. DEFERRED TAX (contd)

Deferred tax liability (Contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no additional deferred tax liability
has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earmings in 2022 that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such eamings for the year

ended 31 December 2022 in the foreseeable future.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with the
investment in the subsidiary in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately RMB 184,152,000
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB129,860,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

14. IR IE ()

EEHEEEw)
HE_T-—_F+-HA=+—HL
FE - WESAEEEFBREAME
M AR ZBAMMBNB A RE LA
FmIE T HN BB EREIEE
INERETIIRBE - EFRE - #E
—E-__F+-_A=+—HIHF
B ZEMBARRAYERGRDT
AAgEenIRE@AET -

RN-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—Q0  H
M AR EREERIBA ERRPEA
HfT B A R AR E AR ERR =58
HREEA) A AN REE 184,152,000 (= F
——%F : AR¥129,860,0007T) °
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I15. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts of buildings used in its operations. Leases of

buildings have lease terms between 8 and 10 years. Generally, the Group is

restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group,

and there is no lease contract that includes extension and termination

options and variable lease payments.

15.  HE
AEEEREABEA
AEEELEERERNREDN
MEAH - BTHENRAEAE0
F o —RfE - ANEBIE B
EEyINEBRERARASEE ¥
B R R AR B 12 A R AT
SRS NROBEAL -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EAREE
The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AT E IR EBRFANERE
movements during the year are as follows: BEMEDENEE :
Buildings
BF
2022 2021
—E2-
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
As at | January n—H—H 3,737 4201
Additions INE 1,206 =
Depreciation charge HEEM (355) (464)
Derecognition due to early termination AR R 4R IE AR 1R (2,104) -
As at 3| December Rnt+=—A=+—H 2,484 3737

F 3R 2022
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[N 31 DECEMBER 2022
K ZE-—Ff+=ZHA=+—H
“15. LEASES (Contq) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Contd) TEBEEREAHEA R
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the ATHINAEBRFAEER
year are as follows: BERRREENRES -
Buildings
BF
2022 2021
—E—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARBFT
Carrying amount at | January R—A—B®EREE 5,104 5,096
New leases MEE 1,206 -
Accretion of interest recognised FNERH
during the year FEEE 134 205
Amount settled through a debt transfer BREBEERRE R
agreement (note 27(b)) B F (F1sE27(b)) (795) (197)
Derecognition due to early termination AR R 4R E AR R (2,291) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—B8KREE 3,358 5,104
Analysed into: DR
Current portion BIHRER 7 1,216 514
Non-current portion JEENEAEE > 2,142 3,590
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 34 to the HEBENI DT RENRY
financial statements. BEERMTE34
During the year, the Group entered into lease contracts of buildings FA - ANEE LR SR
with a related party amounting to RMB1,206,000 (202 |: Nil). Included FHESDNEARE206000
in lease liabilities were amounts due to a related party after the debt T(ZEBEZ—F :F) - A
transfer (note 27(b)) of RMB3,066,000 as at 3| December 2022 T -_—_&F#+=-_HA=+—8"
(2021: RMB4,81 1,000). HEBEBREEHBEER (M

FE27(b) ) FEAS — & BEES: 5 3RIE
ARHE3066000T(—ZFE = —
F 0 AREA4811,0007T) °
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I5. LEASES (contq) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Contd) TEBEEREAHEA R
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to () BMHEERBzZERNZELW
leases are as follows: T :
2022 2021
B —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBFT
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBENMERX 134 205
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets CREEENTEER 355 464
Administrative expenses resutting from HiRR&IEHEMEER
early termination of a lease TR (187) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIB R ERMERE 302 669
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET l6. Htb B EE
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group decided to write HE_T-_—F+-H=+—HL
off the patents and licences with a net carrying amount of RMB302,000 FE - HREBEERTBTEZE
because the relevant business is not planned to operate. B ANEEREMEREFERA

R #302,0007C ) FF) K 7 AT o

Patents
and licences
BN R FFA]
RMB'000
ARBFIT
3| December 2021 - —&%+-"A=+—H
At | January 2021, net of accumulated amortisation RZZE-_—F—RA—B  HKkRZFEH 302
Amortisation provided during the year FREHEE (302)
At 31 December 2022 and 2021, net carrying amount RIEBE-—FR T -—F

+-A=+—B0EEFE =
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

17. E 5 EWRE

2022 2021

—s—-= —E_ 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Trade receivables 2 5 W F0R 83,469 40,587
Impairment DERIE] (1,263) (542)
82,206 40,045

The Group's trading terms for rendering property management, charging
pile services, online group-buying services and value-added services with
its customers mainly require payment in advance. The trading terms for
property engineering services, club house services, including catering and
ancillary services are mainly on credit and the credit period is generally
within 30 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in trade receivables were amounts due from related parties of
RMB61,121,000 as at 31 December 2022 (202 1: RMB31,394,000).

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates to their fair value.

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (contq)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of each reporting

period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

17. EZ IR IE ()

REREHR - EHRWFIEER
ZR AR LB EBRRENRE D

T
2022 2021
B —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Within | year E3N 74,394 38,170
| to 2 years | Z224F 7,264 [,277
2 to 3 years 2E3F 519 598
3 to 4 years 3E4AF 29 -
82,206 40,045

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

T

BRI FIRREEEREZE I

2022 2021

—ZE2-
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARETT
At beginning of year RE ] 542 45]
Impairment losses, net BEERFER 721 91
At end of year WER 1,263 542

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on ageing for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past

events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

F 3R 2022
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. TRADE RECEIVABLES (cont) 17. EZ RN IE ()

Throughout the year, management kept monitoring the recoverability of RERETE  EBEHFEEES
trade receivables. Since the actual loss rate for trade receivables and the JEW R IR AT EI M - RRNEFERE
adjustments for forward-looking factors did not have significant changes SEBGIEN B R BB RATEE
during the year, management kept the same expected credit loss rate ERMFARLT/MEAE L BRE
during the year. If there is an indicator for a significant change in credit risk, REARFERBNEHEESE
management would reassess and revise the expected credit loss rate where ZoMANRRKRAGERRELSE
appropriate during such year ended. KL SR EAE N A BHRER

LT R RAEE -

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the BEEANEBIRAREERAZENE
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: SEW B =S R K O &R E
(LN
As at 31 December 2022 N-—TB-_—F+=-A=+—H
Ageing
fRi
Within | year ~ 1to2years 2to3years 3 to4years Total
E3 | E25 183 3B4F ast
Expected credit loss rate BAEEERE 2% 5% 10% 30% 3%
Gross carrying amount due from EYEIE=H
independent third parties (RMB000) AEREAESTT) 18,093 3,66 553 41 22,348
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEER
(ARETT) 362 183 55 12 612
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEEX 1% 2% 4% 10% 1.09%
Gross carrying amount due from JElas A B EE
related parties (RMB000) (ARETT) 57,236 3,862 3 - 61,121
Expected credit losses (RMB000) EHEESE
(ARETT) 573 76 2 - 651

Total expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEERLSE
(AR®TT) 935 259 57 12 1,263

166 XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R SRR

31 DECEMBER 2022
—E-_—4Ff+-A=+—H

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (contq)
As at 31 December 2021

17. EZ EWRFRIE 2

R-ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H

Ageing
Within | year | to 2 years 210 3 years Total
k30 Evks 1E3F )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 2% 5% 10% 2%
Gross carrying amount due from EYBLE=FH
independent third parties (RMB000) BEREEARETT) 8,72l 398 74 9,193
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEER
(AR®BTT) 174 20 7 201
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 1% 2% 4% 1.09%
Gross carrying amount due from FE M BB 7 B BR (A
related parties (RMB'000) (AR#TTT) 29923 917 554 31,394
Expected credit losses (RMBI000) BHEEEE
(ARET) 300 I8 23 341
Total expected credit losses (RMB'000) RHEEEBRESE
(AREFT) 474 38 30 542

F3R 2022
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OTHER ASSETS HEMEE
2022

:g: —
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETIT
Prepayments TEfFRIE 857 3,099
Deposits A 321 364
Other receivables E b R IR 8,482 9,269
Value-added tax recoverable Ak B EF 1,181 2,058
10,841 14,790

The carrying amounts of financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets approximate to their fair values. None of the
above assets is either past due or impaired. As at the end of each reporting
period, deposits and other receivables were classified within stage | and
no impairment was provided for. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of

default.
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS 19. BHEE

2022 2021
—=E—= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Contract assets arising from provision of TR TIZRSFTEAER
property engineering services BREE 23,307 22,175
Impairment BB (233) (222)
23,074 21953

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue eamed from property
engineering services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on certain
milestones or successful completion of construction. Upon the milestones
or completion of construction and acceptance by the customer, the
amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.
The Group's trading terms and credit policy with customers are disclosed
in note |7 to the financial statements. The increase in contract assets during
the reporting period was mainly because the property engineering services
have not obtained receipt on certain milestones or successful completion of

construction.

Included in contract assets were amounts due from related parties of
RMB23,307,000 as at 31 December 2022 (202 1: RMB22,175,000).

F 3R 2022

BRIBEN D 59 X T2 ARFS HREL
MR s ETTRER - S WERRE D
LA T B2 S A T SEAK e T/ Al
R - REXRBREBIRTAR
PRk  HRARANEENTR
CENDBEBHBBFR - A%
BEZFHNE SR RERRRKTD
BERMERERMEI7 - ANEE
RIEHAEN - DEBHRNYE
TR ARE T BB HKI
% T #)I8 B WEFOR -

RZEZ_F+=ZA=+—H" &
WEEREREBIRBARE
233070007 ( —ZT=—%F : ARK
22,175,0007T) °
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19. BHEE @)
Rt A=+—BREHEEEH
BEHTEERRS I T

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as at 3|

December is as follows:

2022 2021
—Egq2-
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Within one year —F R 22,142 20,855
After one year — 1% 1,165 1,098

Total contract assets BHEERE 23,307 21,953

BREERENBRREESMT

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract assets are as

170

follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFIT
At beginning of year REA) 222 107
Impairment losses, net BB R I 15
At end of year RER 233 222

Impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates for the
measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract assets are
based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets and the
trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision rates
of contract assets are based on ageing of contract assets for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type
and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions.
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS (contq)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's contract assets using a provision matrix:

19. BHEE =)

FRrSEERABEERTENE
AEENEERRE O ER S0
™

Expected credit loss rate TRHREEEEX
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) wiEEmE(ARETT)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EEEEBEBR(ARETT)

1% 1%
23,307 22,175
233 222

Included in carrying amounts of contract assets as stated above is retention
money of RMBI,165,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB1,098,000).
The retention money is to be settled after one year at the end of each

reporting date.

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and represented the
monies withheld by customers of contract works fully recoverable within 2
years (i.e., the warranty period) from the date of completion of respective
property engineering services in accordance with the terms specified in the
relevant contracts. Upon satisfactory completion of the whole project as
set out in the contract, the customers will issue a completion certificate.
Generally, two years after the issuance of the completion certificate, the
whole retention money of such project will be released to the Group. This
amount of retention money is included in contract assets until the end of
the warranty period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on completion of the warranty period. The Group is responsible,
at its own costs, for remedial works that may arise from defective works
or materials used. The warranty period serves as an assurance that the
construction services performed comply with agreed-upon specifications
and such assurance cannot be purchased separately. The Group classifies
these contract assets as current because the Group expects to realise them
in its normal operating cycle. The retention money does not have any

significant financing component for a financing benefit.

F 3R 2022
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0. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 20.BERBESZEYURS

i
W”;R
i

N

RESTRICTED/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

PR, ZHRIT IR

2022 2021
—=E—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Cash and bank balances e NMIRTTE 467,823 399,232
Time deposits FEHIFER - 50,000
467,823 4249MBY)
Less: Restricted and pledged bank deposits B RRRZBRITER
Guarantee deposits ERFH (100) (100)
Pledged deposits ST - (50,000)
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 467,723 399,132
Denominated in: sHEA -
RMB ARE 463,538 444,981
usD ey 90 24
HKS$ BT 4,195 4227
467,823 4AD A3

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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200 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

RESTRICTED/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (contq)

At 31 December 2022, the Company has restricted and pledged deposits
amounting to RMB100,000 (202 1: RMB50,100,000). The pledged deposits
amounting to RMB50,000,000 in 202| were to guarantee the bills
acceptance granted by a bank under a bills acceptance agreement (“Bills
Acceptance Agreement”’) to a related party which is a member of Zensun
Development Group and controlled by Ms. Zhang, the non-executive
Director of the Company. In March 2022, such pledge was terminated
between the Company’s subsidiary and the bank and all pledged deposits
amounting to RMB50,000,000 were released from the financial guarantee

provided by the Group for the indebtedness of the related party.

Cash at banks and districted bank deposits eamn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default and no expected credit

loss was expected to incur.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair

values.

F 3R 2022

20 BERBEEEBYUARFZ

R SHBITER®
RZZE-_—_F+=-—A=+—H"
RARRIEXBREZBERARE
100000 (ZE=-Z—F : AR
50,1000007C) e RZT=Z—%F + ¥
F1E A R %£50,000,0007T 155 —FE
RITIRBAE ZRHE ([RLERR
ek ) mEEE S (A ERBERERR
KE AR ARARRERITES R
ARSI L B R RIR AR
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23

22,

~~21. TRADE PAYABLES

21. BB ENRIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each reporting REREHKR EFEMFEER
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HZEAHORERSTAOT
2022 2021
—E2-
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBFT
Within | year —FR 40,598 21,939
Over | year —EEM = 1,152 567
41,750 22,506
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled in less B S RNFRETTERE —RR =&
than three months. The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate to RA&EE - EF RN FIENREE
their fair values. HEH AN FERS ©
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22. At RN AR EE A

2022 2021

—E2-
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBFIT
Payroll payables BN TE 6,152 7814
Tax payables other than income tax TR (FTSRERIN) 9,052 8,058
Amounts due to related parties e a5 5k0E 4,754 1,825
Deposits A 10,982 9,667
Other payables H b FE(FRIA 29,669 27,788
60,609 55,152

The amounts due to related parties were non-trade in nature, non-interest-

bearing and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities included in other payables and

accruals approximate to their fair values.
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23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. 8 EE

2022

—E-

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Advanced receipts for property management Y E IR NG E RIS TBUGRIE

and value-added services

66,853 74,040

Included in contract liabilities were amounts due to related parties of
RMB2,477,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB4,005,000). The
decrease in contract liabilities during the reporting period was mainly due to

the decrease in advances from customers of property management services.

F 3R 2022
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1] =

S i

[ i
= )

“24. PROVISIONS 24. B &

Assurance-type

warranties

IRBIVIEIR

RMB'000

ARETTT

At | January 2021 R—E—_—F—HF—H 2,085

Arising during the year FRNESE [,010
As at 3|1 December 2021 and | January 2022 ATE-—F+—-_A=1+—H8BK

—E__F—H—H 3,095

Arising during the year FRNESE 623

At 31 December 2022 KRB —F+—-A=+—H 3718

2022

—E-—

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Analysed into: =1
Current BNHA
Non-current FEENHA

1,688 1,238
2,030 1,857

The above provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on
services provided during the year, based on estimation of management. It
is expected that these costs will be incurred in the next one to two years.
Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on
current sales levels and current information available about repairs based on

the warranty period for the services provided.
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25. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

25. R

BRo.0IBTHNERER

Number of

shares

BRHEE

Authorised: EE

Authorised ordinary shares at R-ZE-_—_%—A—H
| January 2022 and r—E-——F+—A
3| December 2022 =t HWEEER

% 10,000,000,000

Nominal

value

E{E
HK$
BT

100,000

Nominal

value

H{E
RMB

AR®

89,858

Issued and fully paid: EETIWE2BHE

400,000,000 (202 I: 400,000,000)

400,000,000 (=T = —4F :

2022
—E-=

RMB’000
ARET T

2021

RMB000
ARBTT

ordinary shares of HK$0.0| each 400,000,0004% )
FAR0.017ETTH) EBAR 3,572 3572
A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows: KA AE ST

Notes
FaE
At | January 2021 and 3| December R=ZE=—%F—H—H
2021, | January 2022 and N_T_—F+_H
31 December 2022 =t—H
—E-_F—H—H
M—ZT-——F+—-A
=+—H

Number of

shares

RHEE

400,000,000

Nominal

value

HE

HK$°000
TET

4,000

Equivalent
amount
FEHEE
RMB’000
ARBFR

3,572

All the shares issued during the period rank pari passu with other shares in

issue in all respects.

F 3R 2022
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““26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the

current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

®

(i)

Share premium
The share premium of the Group represents the difference between

capital injection and the share capital paid by the shareholders.

Merger reserve and capital reserve
The merger reserve and capital reserve of the Group represent those
reserves arising from the reorganisation for the purpose of listing on

the Stock Exchange.

(iii) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, each of these
entities is required to appropriate 0% of its net profits after tax,
as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserves until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its
registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the entities, the
statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset losses, or to
be converted to increase share capital provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of the
Group. The reserves cannot be used for purposes other than those

for which they are created and are not distributable as cash dividends.

(iv) Other reserve

Other reserve of the Group represents those reserves arising from

the share-based payment in prior years.
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27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

@

(b)

F 3R 2022

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB1,206,000 (2021: Nil)
and RMB 1,206,000 (2021: Nil), respectively, in respect of lease

arrangements for buildings.

27. mERERERNTE

(@) FEIREXRH

FA - AEERETHERH
*ﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁ%é%&%ﬁiﬁﬁ
BEHIFRERE

DRI/AR

#1206,0007T (ZE = —%F :
)R AR 1206000 ( ==

——F:F)-
Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RIEEBEENEESRE
activities

Lease

liabilities

HEAE

RMB’000

AR%T T

At | January 2022 R—ZE—-——F—H—H 5,104
Changes from financing cash flows AR S REELNE _
New leases FHEE 1,206
Interest expenses B 134
Amount settled through a debt transfer agreement BREKEE EEENERE (795)
Derecognition due to early termination AR R4 AR R (2,291)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—F+—-A=+—H 3,358

Lease
liabilities

HERE

RMB'000
ARETT

At | January 2021 R-_ZE_—%—HA—H

Changes from financing cash flows BEREREELENEE -
New leases e =
Interest expenses *'J S 205
Amount settled through a debt transfer agreement BAEREEEAEN SR (197)
At 31 December 202 R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H 5,104

EYE RS AR AT
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OF CASH FLOWS (contq)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash

flows is as follows:

27. RERERERM T @)

(c) HERSRLAE
FFABReRERNEER SN
HARERIAT -

2022 2021
_i__ _==__ﬂ5

—_— =

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Within operating and financing activities R ERBE LB

28. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the related party's indebtedness

are included in notes 20 to the financial statements.

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

As at 3| December 2021, one of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
had pledged deposits amounting to RMB50,000,000 to guarantee the bills
acceptance granted by a bank under the Bills Acceptance Agreement to
a related party which is a member of Zensun Development Group and
controlled by Ms. Zhang, the non-executive Director of the Company. In
March 2022, such pledge was terminated between the Company's subsidiary
and the bank and all pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB50,000,000
were released from the financial guarantee provided by the Group for
indebtedness of the related party. The Board consider that the possibility of
default in payment regarding the indebtedness of the related party is remote
as the above pledge was terminated between the Company’s subsidiary
and the bank and all pledged bank deposits were released from the financial
guarantee provided for the indebtedness of the related party before the
date of approving these financial statements, and therefore, no provision
has been made in the consolidated financial statements for the contingent
liability associated with the financial guarantee provided by the Group to

guarantee the bills acceptance granted by the bank to the related party.
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30. COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant commitments as at the end of each reporting

30. RIE
AREEIAR IR HASRA M B ARIE o

period.

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(d) In addition to the transactions detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year:

3. AR B
(@) BREZETKHEREMIBD
R EZ N RE
A NEBEHEBBEEE U

T%5:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB'000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBT T

F 3R 2022

Sales of services or products:
Property management and

value-added services rendered to

HERGHEMR
FIREEE D IR R EE R
BEIRFS

related parties (@) (i) 36,742 42,027

Property engineering services Bzl S
rendered to related parties T 2R (i) (i) 51,552 45,722
Others Hi - 2,552
88,294 90,301
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(@) In addition to the transactions detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year: (Contd)

Notes:

0]

(i

The sales of services rendered to the related parties were based on

agreements mutually agreed by both parties.

The Group was engaged in the provision of property management
and value-added services and property engineering services to Ever
Diamond Group, Zensun Enterprises Group and Zensun Development

Group.

Ever Diamond Global Company Limited and Zensun Enterprises
Limited are ultimately owned as to 100% and 71.99% by a discretionary
trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector as at the date
of this report. As Ms. Huang is the mother of Ms. Zhang, the non-
executive director of the Company, both Zensun Enterprises Group
and Ever Diamond Group are connected entities of Ms. Zhang.
Additionally, the Zensun Development Group are entities controlled
by Ms. Zhang.

The related party transactions in respect of property management

and value-added services and property engineering services rendered

to related parties above also constitute continued connected
transactions as defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

All of the transactions above were carried out in the normal course of

the Group’s business and on terms as agreed between the transaction

parties.

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

3. B SR B ()
(@) REZEVHHRREMIS

FiEFBfNXB 5N RE
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"R5:#®)

FEE

() RS RN HEERER
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(i) AEEERELKEREE
B EREREERIERE
REBRIMEER - 8E
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MARERH  ELER
MERT ARREARILD
ERIERKED IR A KE
BREBRARNESEXRE
PR A R] 100% 1 71.99% Y AR
¥ - AMNEX T BARRFEZE
MITERERLTHER -
It EAERSEMKER
HREBYRRLINEEE
B o utsh - EREREER
SR TIEHINERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contq)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

©

F 3R 2022

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Xingye IOT Management,
a subsidiary of the Company, signed a debt transfer agreement with
certain related parties to transfer the receivable collection rights
due from those related parties to Henan Zensun Real Estate Co.,
Ltd., another related party of the Group. After the completion of
the transfer, Xingye IOT Management will settle the receivables and
payables with Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd. on the net basis
after offsetting.

Details of the Group's outstanding balances of trade receivables,
contract assets, other payables, contract liabilities and lease liabilities
and amounts with related parties are disclosed in notes 17, 19, 22, 23

and |5 to the financial statements, respectively.

The trade receivables, contract assets, other payables, contract
liabilities and lease liabilities and amounts with related parties due

from/to related parties are unsecured and interest free.

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group

3. BB AR B (&)

(b) EREEEESHIRBELSER

©

BHE_ZT-__F+ZH=+—
HIEFE - ZARH BT E
X YH B IR A T RN 5 R E]
BERE R - SEKZER
i 77 B FEMGRR I WOR B R T

AEES BB TEERE
XERAF - EETHKE - H
B E IR G AR SH R R RE
EREEERmERXERAT
B FE U FRTE K FE SRR o

REEESHEWFIE - 6HE
EEMEMNRE 08
& - HEBE KBS 5 FIER
RIBEERFTIED IR R
REFFEI7 19~ 22~ 23/ |58

%o

E%EWM BREE

N ANEA @Eﬁ‘ﬂ
ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%/ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬁ
B SRIES AEEA NSRS o

‘ﬂﬂﬁ ‘tﬂit

FEEXEEEASH M

2022 2021

—E=—-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Short term employee benefits EHES R 916 1,607
Post-employment benefits R IZ B A 132 132
1,048 1,739

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the

financial statements.

=M HE — FRFBENE
A MIEs
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M 31 DECEMBER 2022
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1

INANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2. REREsTHNEMT A

| ‘Wr‘ﬂ
4

932, F

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at NEWHEH KR KL T AEERN
the end of each reporting period are as follows: FREIELT :
Financial assets EREE
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial assets at amortised cost: REBERATIRNSREE AR¥T T ARETIT
Trade receivables B S EWFE 82,206 40,045
Financial assets included in prepayments, other 5T AFE{TFRIE « EAth B FIA K
receivables and other assets HhEENTSREE 8,803 9,633
Restricted and pledged bank deposits R R ZIRRITER 100 50,100
Cash and cash equivalents B MEEEHEY 467,723 399,132
558,832 498910
Financial liabilities 8 =Ri
2022 2021
:%: _
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REBHERATIRNESRME RS AR®T T ARBTFT
Trade payables B S EFIE 41,750 22,506
Financial liabilities included in other ST AEL L FE - 30T K
payables and accruals EErEReRAE 45,405 39,280
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,358 5,104

90,513 66,890
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33.

34.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports directly
to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The

valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current

transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk
and liquidity risk. The directors of the Company review and agree policies

for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

F 3R 2022

33.&8@IA mﬂ$ﬁ&®$ﬁ

[E 4%
EREEHER T _—_FR=F
——F+ZA=+—HHNHRE KR
CEEY  BIRWRIE BIHE
HIE « FTATBNIE - EfEK
HRERHEMWEENSREE  5TA
HtENRERETERNSHE
BENATFEEHEREBRS 2
AR ZE T AR E|EEARER o

ZRER B RO B 75 B e A A AR SRR AR
BEEFER T AR FEFENK
REERF - MBEEER TR
W&$V§AEE$ REREH

H MBHOMERTAEENE
BIRTERANGENEZH AR
Iz - MEAMBEESEERIE -

TREERABEZAFHERBERER]
#1772 BRERIRR 5 (5B F R
EXGHEINPEEZETANDH
N

4. BHEREERERBR

AEENTIESRMTABERE R
RedEY 2SeTANER
BHNERANEENEEEE - A
BEARZHEERBHEESEELEN
HemEERAE  WESHEK
HIERB P EMNFRIEA °

$E@m‘£@lﬂﬁﬁ?$ﬁ@$£@
B % T:Tﬁ EnEeRR - &
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BHIBERBANT -

EYE RS AR AT

185
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PIE e

31 DECEMBER 2022

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES HERBEEBERBEK

AND POLICIES (contq) (%)

Credit risk FEER K

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties and AEBEZERBAIMEERITNE=
related parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade FREEHETEE - NEBMK
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, REMEEEREEGIETES
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's NEF  BAEIEEEZRER - It
exposure to bad debts is not significant. O RIRIEARIFESEE - M

REBEBAZZRNARILNERX -

Maximum exposure and year-end staging Ee R R EREER

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to TRETRBEAKSEGEEBRET
credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on NEEBEER&EaRAR  EXEI
ageing information unless other information is available without undue cost BRERER AER(BRIFHMERER
or effort, and year-end staging classification. The amounts presented are HBEK AL HRNA S - Al
gross carrying amounts for financial assets. TERIRR) - ARFRFPEER DL - T2

JCERTHEEMNLREE -
31 December 2022 —E-—F+=/F=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 1
REBE RURAGEEEE

Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FIER FIER F3ER s Ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARBTR ARET:R

Trade receivables* B SR - - - 83,469 83,469
Financial assets included in prepayments, STATER R - HtfE

other receivables and other assets B R E A & ER

— Normal** — [P 8,803 - - - 8,803
Contract assets* BREE - - - 23,307 23,307
Restricted and pledged bank deposits XBREWRITER

— Not yet past due —WABH 100 - - - 100
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEN

— Not yet past due —WABH 461,123 - - - 467,723

476,626 - - 106,776 583,402
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. B EAKMETEEERKE

AND POLICIES (contq) (%)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Contd) BERBRREREE®)
31 December 2021 —E-—F+=ZHA=+—H

[2-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A E
B PERBEEER

Simplified

Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
IR FWER B3R A a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETRH

Trade receivables* B AR R - - - 40587 40587

Financial assets included in prepayments, STABATE - Ethek

other receivables and other assets TERE B ER)

— Normal** —[EF* 9,633 - - - 9,633
Contract assets* alEE = - - 2,175 2175
Restricted and pledged bank deposits RRRZRRER

—Not yet past due —WABH 50,100 - - - 50,100
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY

— Not yet past due — WARBH 399,132 = = = 399,132

458,865 - - 62,762 521,627

& For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the simplified * BRI E R (E T %R
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in EBEZENZEREWEENE
notes |7 and |9 to the financial statements, respectively. ERIBEEEREF D IR

REMIEI 78 19F HFE -

**  The credit qudlity of the financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables #* A TR IE - B ENIE
and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and R B B EE R % 7 EE D A A
there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase A EEHFE NN EHEER
in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial 1= B2 5 F 175 R LA e A 15 1%
assets is considered to be “doubtful”. o B ESHEEMEEEE

W IEF ] - BRI W ETH
BENEEEEREB A -

F3R 2022 EEYHREEBERAT 187



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

31 DECEMBER 2022
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T :H

= )i

“34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34.BIBEREEBEERBRE
AND POLICIES (contq) (%)
Liquidity risk REETE
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of each RERESHR  A5EcREBER
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as REHNRMIREFRNBHEROT
follows:
As at 31 December 2022 R-E--_F+-HA=1+—H

Less than Ito5 Over

On demand | year years 5 years Total

RER DRIE | E55 HBiBSE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETHT ARETn AR%®Tn AR%®Trn AR¥Tx

Trade payables BAENFE 41,750 - - - 41,750
Financial liabilities included in HAEMENTER
other payables and accruals EAERNSRAR 45,405 - - - 45,405
Lease liabilties HEAR - 1,797 2,140 506 4,443
87,155 1,797 2,140 506 91,598
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+—-H=+—H

Less than [t05 Over

On demand | year years 5 years Total

mEX ZiNE3 | E5F ithERES @5t

RMBI000 RMBO0O RMBI000 RMBI00O RMBI000
ARBTR  ARBTLE ARETT ARETL ARETR

Trade payables BoRNTIE 22,506 - - - 22,506

Financial liabilities included in STAEMERTER
other payables and accruals [ ERENSRAR 39,280 = = = 39280
Lease liabilties HEAR - 1,703 3119 1276 6,098
61,786 1,703 3119 1276 67,884
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

35.

AND POLICIES (contq)
Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concemn and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’

value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or

processes for managing capital during the reporting period.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings divided by total equity. As at the end of the
reporting period, there were no interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

As such, no gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting date was presented.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after 31 December 2022 and up to the

date of this annual report.

F 3R 2022

(%)

AXREE
AEBENEENE 2 B IRAER
AEBEABERELENES - B
FREMNEARLE  UXHEER
BIF - FREmANBRREE -

AEERBEEBLNES KIAH
BENRARSE  EREENER
WIEHFAE - BEFXFABRERNS
B AEBERERERRRIKEN
BB ARREEEANSETHR
- RIBERALEFREEEARD
B BRS&AER o

AERBAEER B R (A ERTT
REMERR A AR EREE
AR REEHR - WEFBRITR
HAER o Eitt - REE BRI &
SHEAEERMEBLER

35. SREHIREE

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H#%EXK
HEAFRAY WMEZLTAE
KEIH -
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COMPANY

= 36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

36. AT MM RER

ARBRBREPAROFHRRAKE

AR

2022 2021
—E—-= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSET FkREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary A R NG ES e 350 321
Total non-current assets IEREBEERLE 350 321
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 1,229 1416
Due from subsidiaries FEUHI B A B FE 235,266 252274
Total current assets mENEERE 236,495 253,690
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HEENRIBERETER 3,130 20,846
Total current liabilities mEN A EEEE 3,130 20,846
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 233,365 232,844
Net assets BEFE 233,715 233,165
EQUITY e
Share capital A& < 3,572 3,572
Reserves (note 26) &M (726) 230,143 229,593
Total equity R iERE 233,715 233,165

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  36. A A BB IR &R @)

COMPANY (contg
Note: BfsE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RATBZEHEBRENT
Share Share Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
BRA RipE 5 wfe REBH Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR ARBTT AR¥ETR ARBT
At 31 December 2020 and | January 2021 i ey
o =) B S
—A-H 3572 254507 (15539) 132 2673
Loss for the year FRER - - - (2995) (2.995)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMEAEEE
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINETZ
foreign operations EHESR - - (6513) - (6513)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEREE - - (6513) (2995) (9,508)
At 31 December 2021 and | January 2022 R-T-_—-%+_-R
St-RR-%--F
-A-B 3572 254507 (22,051) (2,863) 233,165
Loss for the year FRER - - - (10,510) (10,510)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMZEESE
Exchange differences on translation of BEEINETGZ
foreign operations ERES - - 19,240 - 19,240
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEREE - - 19,240 (10,510) 8,730
2021 final dividend paid BERNZZ-—FRERE - (8,180) - - (8,180)
At 31 December 2022 R-T-_—%+_R
=t-f 3572 246327 2811) (13373) 2133715

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. #bETI B IE R IR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the MBBREN_ZE_=F=A=1+h
board of directors on 29 March 2023. HESESHEWRETE -
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mERE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—F-= —EIRF ZE-NF ZT)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR¥TRT AR¥TT ARBTT ARBTET
Revenue Wz 321,069 281,660 213,188 184,122 131,046
Gross profit EF 99,682 93,806 86,739 78,652 62,291
Profit before tax R B A A 64,986 72,769 60,720 46,904 45458
Income tax expense PGB (17,788) (18,241) (17217) (11,731 (11,238)
Profit for the year F A A 47,198 54,528 43503 35,173 34,220
Attributable to: AT AL -
Owners of the Company AR EIHES A 47,175 54,528 43,503 35,173 34,220
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES SEEE REENEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—8-= —EFE —FNF —FTN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMR'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T  ARETT AREBTRT AREFTT ARETT
Assets BE

Non-current assets IEREEE 7,387 6,209 7,141 5,533 3,640
Current assets EEE 583,944 526,020 423,113 210,468 188,290
Total assets BERE 591,331 532,229 430254 216,001 191,930

Equity and liabilities  EZRAE
Non-current liabilities EREBAE 4,762 6,037 5,833 2,228 92|
Current liabilities mENAE 173,072 155,684 108,077 99,773 69,793
Total liabilities BEEBRE 177,834 161,721 113910 102,001 70,714
Total equity S4B EE 413,497 370,508 316,344 1 14,000 121,216
Total equity and liabilities 425 & B ([E4858 591,331 532,229 430,254 216,001 191,930

XINGYEWULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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